Village of Colfax
Regular Board Meeting Agenda
Monday, April 10t", 2023
7:00 p.m.
Village Hall, 613 Main Street, Colfax, Wl 54730

Call the Regular Board Meeting to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Public Comments
Communications from the Village President
Consent Agenda
a. Regular Board Meeting Minutes — March 27, 2023
b. Review Statement of Bills Pooled Checking—March 27t 2023 to April 9%, 2023
c. Review Statement of Bills Solid Waste & Recycling Checking- March 27, 2023 to April 9™, 2023
d. Training Request — Police Chief Anderson — 04/17/2023 to 04/20/2023- Law Enforcement Management
Conference - Hayward, WI
Facility Rental - none
Licenses

ook =

-0

7. Consideration ltems
a. Election Results Discussion and possible action
i. One - Trustee Vacancy
Board of Review Trainee selection for 2023-2024
Designated Fund Balance Review and possible action
Review Potential Subdivision Request -1009 University Avenue
Closed Session - Motion to convene into closed session pursuant to WI Statutes 19.85(1) (c) considering
the employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over
which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises.
i. Discuss/consider wages/salaries of Village employees.
f.  Open Session — Motion to convene into open session to take any action resulting from the closed
session.
i. Discuss/consider wages/salaries of Village employees.

Poo0mC

8. Committee/Department Reports — (no action)
a. Colfax Police Department — March Report
b. March Building Permits
c. Elevator minutes — March 14, 2023
d. ACT Report

9. Adjourn

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the American with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to
be in an accessible location or format must contact: Lynn M. Niggemann - Clerk-Treasurer, 613 Main Street, Colfax, Wi (715) 962-3311 by 2:00
p.m. the day prior to the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of the governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the
above-stated meeting to gather information; no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other than the
governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice.




Village Board Meeting March 27t, 2023

On March 27%, 2023, the Village Board met at the Village Hall, 613 Main Street, Colfax, Wi at 7:00 p.m. Members
present: Trustees M. Burcham, Davis, Rud, Jenson, Stene, Prince and Albricht. Others present included Pat Eggert with
the Woman’s Club, Gareth Shambeau with Ayres Associates, Don Logslett with Public Works, Public Works Director
Bates, Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer Niggemann and LeAnn Ralph with the Messenger.

Communications from the Village President-none.

Public Comments- Pat Eggert advised the Village Board that the Colfax Woman’s Group will not be asking for any funds
since they were able to raise enough money to fund the Music in the Park for 2023. Eggert also provided a 2023 Music
in the Park schedule.

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting Minutes —March 13, 2023- A motion was made by Trustee Stene and seconded by Trustee M.
Burcham to approve the Regular Board meeting minutes for March 13", 2023. A voice vote was taken with all members
voting in favor. Motion carried.

Review Statement of Bills —-March 13", 2023 to March 26", 2023

Review Statement of Bills Solid Waste & Recycling Checking — March 13", 2023 to March 26", 2023

A motion was made by Trustee M. Burcham and seconded by Trustee Rud to approve both the Village of Colfax
Statements of Bills and the Solid Waste & Recycling Bills for March 13%, 2023 to March 26%, 2023. A voice vote was
taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Training Request—none.
Facility Rental — none.

Licenses-Brittany Sonnenberg-Operator’s License-March 27" to June 30%, 2023 — A Little Slice of Italy — A motion was
made by Trustee Stene and seconded by Trustee Prince to approve the operator’s license for Brittany Sonnenberg from
March 27 to June 30%, 2023-A Little Slice of ltaly. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor, except
Trustee Jenson Abstained. Motion carried.

Consideration Items

Cedar Street Bid Award — Shambeau provided a recommendation letter which he explained the received bids as follows:
Skid Steer Guy LLC $348,815.85, McCabe Construction Inc $386,099.80, A-1 Excavating $419,171.00, Haas Sons Inc
$419.827.80. The lowest bidder was Skid Steer Guy from Mondovi, WI. The Village of Colfax has worked with Skid Steer
Guy on the previous two projects and the Village staff indicated that they would have no concerns awarding and '
working with this contractor. A motion was made by Trustee Stene and seconded by Trustee Prince to award the 2023
Street Project - Cedar Street to Skid Steer Guy in the amount of $386,099.80. Voting For: Trustees M. Burcham, Davis,
Rud, Jenson, Stene, Prince and Albricht. Voting Against: none. Motion carried.

Joint Review Board meeting discussion and possible actions — Niggemann wanted the Village Board to be aware that
there will be a meeting with Ehlers in the near future to discuss the Village current standings in reference to debt. In the
past the Village Board had decided to use ARPA funding for a street project that needed water and sewer replaced.

With Cedar Street being part of Tax Increment 3, the project is eligible to be funded by TID 3. Niggemann explained that
the Joint Review Board met to provide the other taxing jurisdictions of the project. Niggemann would like the Board to
acknowledge receipt of the minutes from the JRB meeting. A motion wad made by Trustee Stene and seconded by
Trustee M. Burcham to approve the Joint Review Board meeting minutes from March 22, 2023. A voice vote was taken
with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Street Sweeping Bid Award- Niggemann explained that the Village of Colfax only received one street sweeping bid.
Don’s Sweeper Service bid was $8,460 for one year and $16,920 for two-year pricing. The hourly rate is $155 per hour
for both years. A motion was made by Trustee Stene and seconded by Trustee Davis to accept Don’s Sweeper Service



bid for the two-year term in the amount of $8,460 per year totally $16,920 for the two years. Voting For: Trustees
Prince, Stene, Jenson, Rud, Davis, M. Burchman and Albricht. Voting Against: none. Motion carried.

Dunn County Economic Development Corporation Request for Financial Support 2023 — A motion was made by Trustee
Stene and seconded by Trustee Prince to provide $2,000 as the 2023 Financial Support to Dunn County Economic
Development. Voting For: Trustees M. Burcham, Davis, Rud, Jenson, Stene and Prince. Voting Against: Village
President Albricht. Motion carried.

Sewer Utility — Fine Screen at the Lift Station — Estimate for Repairs — Energenecs — The Fine Screen is the unit that is
located inside the lift station. In order to repair the unit, the vendor must remove the equipment from the 20-foot
concrete pit. Energenecs provided a quote for three different scenarios of repairs depending on what they find when
they get the equipment out of the pit. Option 1 is the reason they will be on-site, replace the bush set and wear bars
estimated to be $4036.14 plus crane rental. Option 2 includes ali of option one plus replacing the gearbox and motor
$16,530.86. Option 3 will be determined on site at time of maintenance appointment. Replacing the basket would be a
different day because the basket will not be available until six to eight weeks after it is determined necessary,
$18,050.85. A motion was made by Trustee Stene and seconded by Trustee M. Burcham to approve the maintenance of
the fine screen for the lift station to include the brush set and wear bars and the new gearbox and motor for a the
estimated price of $16,530.86 and revisit if it is determined that a basket is needed. Voting For: Trustees Stene, Prince,
Rud, Jenson, M. Burcham, Davis and Albricht. Voting Against: none. Motion caried.

Adjourn — A motion was made by Trustee Jenson and seconded by Trustee M. Burcham to adjourn the meeting at 7:37
p.m. Avoice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Meeting Adjourned.

Jody Albricht, Village President
Attest:

Lynn Niggemann
Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

ﬂ
March 27t, 2023, Regular Board Minutes Page 2




4/06/2023 1:02 PM Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL Page: 1
ACCT
POOLED CHECKING ACCOUNT Accounting Checks
Posted From: 3/27/2023 From Account:
Thru: 4/09/2023 Thru Account:
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
MWG 4/01/2023 MORGAN WHITE GROUP 1,105.53
XCEL 3/30/2023 XCEL ENERGY 5,192.53
78770 3/31/2023 24-7 TELCOM 44.90
78771 3/31/2023 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE, INC 137.34
78772 3/31/2023 AT&T MOBILITY 487.30
78773 3/31/2023 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS 41.15
78774 3/31/2023 BRETT SAJDERA 126.58
78775 3/31/2023 CAPITAL ONE 102.73
78776 3/31/2023 CENAGE LEARNING INC/GALE 26.59
78777 3/31/2023 CENTURY LINK 126.76
78778 3/31/2023 CLOUD PCR LLC 449.19
78779 3/31/2023 COLFAX CPR PROJECT 175.00
78780 3/31/2023 CRAMER CONSULTING, LIC 3,112.00
78781 3/31/2023 CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCE INC 249.56
78782 3/31/2023 DUNN CO HIGHWAY DEPT 610.52
78783 3/31/2023 DUNN COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP 2,000.00
78784 3/31/2023 E.O. JOHNSON 43.00
78785 3/31/2023 FARRELL EQUIPMENT & SUPPLY CO. 2,698.50
78786 3/31/2023 GALLS, LLC 197.99
78787 3/31/2023 HAWKINS, INC. 1,282.68
78788 3/31/2023 HENRY SCHEIN 15.58
78789 3/31/2023 HUEBSCH LAUNDRY CO 204.34
78790 3/31/2023 LAKEVIEW BOOKS 27.99
78791 3/31/2023 MENARDS-EAU CLAIRE 247.91
78792 3/31/2023 MID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 897.24
78793 3/31/2023 SEMI CORRECT SERVICES, LLC 2,965.37
78794 3/31/2023 SPECTRUM INSURANCE GROUP-EC 13,168.00
78795 3/31/2023 THE PLUMBER 95.00
78796 3/31/2023 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY 33.94
78797 4/04/2023 CAFE II COFFEE SHOP & BAKERY 70.00
78798 4/04/2023 A LITTLE SLICE OF ITALY 43.00
AFLAC 3/29/2023 AFLAC 92.79
EFTPS 3/30/2023 EFTPS-FEDERAL-SS-MEDICARE 7,053.45



4/06/2023 1:02 PM Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL Page: 2
ACCT
POOLED CHECKING ACCOUNT Accounting Checks
Posted From: 3/27/2023 From Account:
Thru: 4/09/2023 Thru Account:
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

WIDOR 3/30/2023 WI DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 1,111.38
WIDOR 4/03/2023 WI DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 450.00
WIETF 4/03/2023 WI DEPT OF EMPLOYEE TRUST FUNDS 11,658.60
PITNEY 3/31/2023 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVICES 143.55
CHARTER 4/03/2023 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 157.97
CHARTER 4/03/2023 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 495 .54
WIDCOMP 3/29/2023 WISCONSIN DEFERRED COMPENSATION 260.00
ASSURITY 3/31/2023 ASSURITY LIFE INS CO 908.25
EXEMPLAR 4/01/2023 EXEMPLAR HEALTH BENEFITS 8,361.95
UNEMPLOY  4/03/2023 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 736.74
Grand Total 67,408.44



4/06/2023 1:02 PM Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL Page: 1

ACCT
SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING RU Accounting Checks

Posted From: 3/27/2023 From Account:

Thru: 4/09/2023 Thru Account:

Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

1236 3/31/2023 AT&T MOBILITY 33.97
1237 3/31/2023 FIRST CHOICE 170.18
1238 3/31/2023 TERRY STAMM 98.94

Grand Total 303.09



4/06/2023 1:02 PM Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL Page: 2

ACCT
SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING RU Accounting Checks
Posted From: 3/27/2023 From Account:
Thru: 4/09/2023 Thru Account:
Amount
Total Expenditure from Fund # 300 - SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING 303.09

Total Expenditure from all Funds 303.09



Meeting / Continuing Education
Travel / Meeting Request Form

Name__ William Anderson Position__ Chief of Police
Date_ 04/03/2023 Department: _Police
Estimated Costs___ $600.00
Date(s) of meeting: 04/17/2023 to 04/20/2023 Employee is_/ NOT required to attend (circle one)

Name of Requested meeting.__Law Enforcement Management Conference

How will this improve your ability to perform your job? Meets standard for mandatory 24 hours of annual training,
able to disseminate pertinent information and training to employees, networking with other agencies and
management.

What alternatives are there to attending this meeting? (In- house resources, literature review, participation in
meetings closer to Eau Claire, etc.)

How will you share what you have learned with others? Pass along all information and important updaftes fo
employees. This is the Annual Conference | have attended in the past and has been very beneficial.

Please include any additional comments on the back of this form

Expense Estimate:  $600.00 Requested Approved
Tuition / Registration $150.00 *Are others attending this meeting YES / NO
Mileage / Airfare 0 (If yes, list names)

Lodging $330.00

*Would like the Registration Fee Miscellaneous pre paid and mailed with your registration

YES / NO
Total $600.00
Time Request: Requested Approved
Number of days absent: 3.5
From Work Setting
Vacation

Paid Conference Time X

Absent Without Pay (own time)

A COPY OF THE MEETING DESCRIPTION AND AGENDA
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS REQUEST

(f%nn WM /¢ 12023

Supervisor Date




Continuing Education

Conferences & Events

Law Enforcement Management
Conference

Training Notice

April 18 - 20, 2023



Flat Creek Hotel and Conference Center
Hayward, WI 54843

Course Description:

The Northwood Technical College Law Enforcement Management Conference has
occurred each year for over twenty years. The conference was developed for the
purpose of providing tailored training to leaders in the law enforcement

profession. Leaders can be the executives of an agency, including sheriffs, chiefs and
their commanders, or first line leaders including lieutenants and sergeants. Leaders
may also include those informal leaders that exist in every agency regardless of rank.

The 2023 LE Management Conference agenda was established to provide specific
training to assist our law enforcement executives and leaders, and their agencies, meet
the challenges occurring and developing. The Conference will deliver 24 hours of critical
training.

Day 1:

Juvenile Program

Adult Diversion Program
Labor/Employment Law Review
WI State Crime Lab Updates

Day 2:
Build Your Leadership Toolbox — M3 Leadership Group
Topics to include:

Team dynamics

Building trust in your position
Leadership Wellness
Accountable Leadership
Emotional Intelligence

Having difficult conversations
Leadership growth

Being a good follower
Empowering high performance

Day 3:
Using a Healthy Cuiture to Recruit and Retain Talent — M3 Leadership Group
Topics include:

Civility in the workplace and how it relates to a healthy
culture

Building a culture that is anchored in wellness

The power of Social Media and Line Staff as recruiters
Learning why staff stays



Wi DCI
WI DOJ - Legal Updates

Important - please note:

By enrolling in classes, you agree to be responsible for the payment of related tuition
and fees according to the college payment policy. Should you choose not to attend a
class, you will need to drop it prior to the day it begins to avoid any charges. Any drops
that occur on or after the first day of class will result in tuition charges to your account.
Failure to pay your tuition bill can result is suspension of registration and records
access, collection agency action and additional collection fees added to your balance.



Lynn Niggemann

From: Jeffrey Stockburger <jeff@esellc.co>
Sent: Monday, March 6, 2023 4:36 PM

To: Lynn Niggemann

Cc: colfaxdpw@colfaxdpw.com
Subject: RE: Preliminary CSM

Lynn,

This survey is needed for due to a divorce between the current owners of the property. There would be an easement
drafted by their attorney over the current driveway and area between the buildings to address the access issue. Would
your public works department have any information regarding the number of services being utilized for the two
buildings? A utility easement/agreement would also be drafted for the water and sewer services by their attorney.

The lots as we have them divided will have 11,824 square feet and 14,306 square feet.
What is the variance process for the CSM and is there a fee for applying for a variance?

Thanks,

survey manager

everyday surveying and engineering, lic
New Address:
711 S. Hillcrest Parkway

Altoona, Wi 54720
tel: 715.831.0654

jeff@esellc.co
www.esellc.co

B Proud Member of

E=s & swcnave W NFIB

T S see of ST

Eiog

From: Lynn Niggemann <clerktreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org>
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 4:35 PM

To: leffrey Stockburger <jeff@esellc.co>

Cc: colfaxdpw@colfaxdpw.com

Subject: RE: Preliminary CSM

leffrey,
| have attached the following:
e A List of things that need to be accomplished for a minor land division.
e The Subdivision Ordinance
o Requires each lot to have street frontage.
e Zoning Ordinance for R-5 Lots



Lynn Niggemann

From: Lynn Niggemann <clerktreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org>

Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 4:35 PM

To: ‘Jeffrey Stockburger'

Cc: ‘colfaxdpw@colfaxdpw.com’

Subject: RE: Preliminary CSM

Attachments: 20230221145854.pdf; 20230221145906.pdf; 20230221162958.pdf; Scheffler vacant lots

by old nursing home.pdf

Jeffrey,
| have attached the following:
e A List of things that need to be accomplished for a minor land division.
e The Subdivision Ordinance
o Requires each lot to have street frontage.
e Zoning Ordinance for R-5 Lots
o Inorder to meeting the ordinance requirements, you would need to have 200 linear feet in width to split
and have two lots with 100 linear feet.
e (CSM 4652 recorded 09/15/2020

Please review these items in confirm that a sub division would be fit into the Village of Colfax ordinances. | have
identified a few items that currently would not meeting code. There are additional items that would need to be
considered if you still decide to move forward with a request for sub division and those items include:
o The Water/Sewer —is there one line or two lines coming from the main?
o Concerns with one line, who is responsible if there are two owners?
e Share Driveway
o Easement would need to be drafted and some kind of guidelines as to maintenance.
e There would need to be a lot of variances requested and approved to make a minor sub division possible.

Rand Bates, the Public Works Director and | recall discussing that this would not be a very good layout for a division to
occur.

Please review this information and let me know if you have further questions.

Lynn M. Niggemann
Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

Village of Colfax

P.O. Box 417

613 Main Street

Colfax, WI 54730-0417

P: 715-962-3311; C: 715-308-9986; F: 715-962-2221
ClerkTreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org

Population 1,191 as of January 1, 2022

Confidentiality Notice: This electronic transmission, including any files attached hereto, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged, confidential,
and exempt from disclosure. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient or any employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby nofified that any disclosure, dissemination,
copying, distribution, or the taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this confidential information is strictly prohibited. if you have received this
communication in error, please destroy it and immediately notify me at clerktreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org or 715.962-3311. Thank you.




From: Jeffrey Stockburger <jeff@esellc.co>
Sent: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 4:39 PM
To: ClerkTreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org
Subject: Preliminary CSM

Lynn,

| have a preliminary CSM that | am preparing for 1009 University Avenue to split the lot into two lots for the existing
apartment buildings. Can you tell me when | would need to submit the preliminary CSM to get on the next Village Board
Meeting agenda?

Thanks,

jeffrey c. stockburger, p.ls.
survey manager

everyday surveying and engineering, lic
New Address:
711 S. Hillcrest Parkway

Altoona, WI 54720
tel: 715.831.0654

jeff@esellc.co
www.esellc.co

Proud Member of

’ ACCREDITED m ‘
® Bed s oonaveer A NFIB

BB8



645567

DUNN COUNTY, WI
REGISTER OF DEEDS
HEATHER M. KUHN

RECORDED ON
09/15/2020 04:13 PM
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NUMBER _L/é_{)';z_ CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 4652

VOLUME 23 PAGE 92

All of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Number 4639 . REC FEE: 30.00
Recorded in Volume 23 on Page 79, PAGES: 2
Located in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, Section 9

Town 29 North, Range 11 West, Village of Colfax, Dunn County, Wisconsin.

LEGEND

O = Set 1" outside diameter X 18” iron pipe
weighing 1.13 pounds per linear foot
@ = Found 1° outside diameter iron pipe

i . High Street o
[ - - n -
8 S S 88'11'31” £ 230.00' @
13 I ET A— —
2 - 00 115,00 R T
a g ] \
I-u% 8l ] \
B, u a 3 g |
R7E o] worz
8y g-——- |
T % B z |
BEE o N g <
BER &5 = LOT 3 =
u%g g - ©1 29,431square feet w LOT 2 =
Ty ] =z 0.68 “deres « | 28,855 sguare feat )
=FB J— S| ~ 0.66 acres = |
8§53 & ©
o Z =@ b= |
e I —— g N
F4 @ S |
83a o 2 :
2 3 S & b ~ | @
£E5 5 o nz
TS | . o j
o 400 80 TTT°% 3 g
ERTIFED. SURVEY MAP #4630 4 oo o
— S ¢
5] 8 . .00'N_B89°17°19" W S g |
SCALE 1" = 80’ 5 N 117.00 et k2 @
N 8F17°19" W 122.00° [ ——=111.99'———] gl
| N BI17'19° W & EI
Wiy, N 5
\\\\\\‘ CON 1y, ) 7,0”' ;1.! &!
& \ g, ,(9 i m| = {
I > g = LOT 1 '
Su $ JAMES M w2 "*'1 8| 2635 square feet [ !
$7 ¢ SCHEFFLERV:™ Z g g o3 z | )
Z § saw  : = N g & g | &
Z % EAUCLARE, § 3 Ag < |
z % fg =T o = |
R Wi Sfo s | (o
S 8l s |
9{/{4,0 “""”"“?‘\3?’\\{‘\ E] &1 z | &
“iy, S s s 8 ~ | (Y}
i PREPARED BY: - i
SCHEFFLER LAND SURVEYING / P
1823 SUSAN DR. /
EAU CLAIRE, WISCONSIN 54701 10.00" |
PHONE: (715) 308-3010 s 7S _00740°52" £
2 i i 110.53 7
S 831719 E ‘q"‘i@
soun-l 1 4 CORNER SECTION 9 (Mdth _—) - = PQ_W
/- LIND RR SPIKE) vanes, S_tﬂt_e_Hijnwgl 40 ~ %
7/7S 881440 € 266088 T 20— — — —
N 9

OUTHEAST CORNER SECTIO!
(FOUND R.R. SPIKE)
TIES VERIFIED

FIELD WORK COMPLETED ON 9-15-2020

DUNN COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS DOCUMENT NUMBER: 645567 PAGE: 1



Village of Colfax

PO Box 417 - Colfax, Wisconsin 54730 — Phone 715-962-3311
Fax 715-962-2221

Scott Gunnufson, President
Lynn M. Niggemann, Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP APPROVAL PROCESS
MINOR LAND DIVISION

Property Owner’s Information

Name:

Property Address/Location:

Legal Address if different:

Owner’s Mailing Address:

Phone Number:

Date Certified Map Received
$100 Review Fee Paid
Reviewed by Public Works Director

Village Board Review [Date 1 Village Board Approval [Date ]

Clerk Reviewed [Date | Any outstand Special Assessments? Etc.?

Final CSM Signed by Clerk

Note: Any modifications to the CSM drafts will be reviewed at no additional cost.

Comments:




TITLE 14
Subdivision Regulations

Chapter 1 Subdivision Regulations

L 3 o g S gy W G N
E R N A L NS

—
R ol

CHAPTER 1

Subdivision Regulations

1 Introduction and Purpose
2 Definitions
3 General Provisions
-4 Procedure for Submitting Subdivisions
5
6
7

Technical Requirements for Preliminary Plats
Replat
Certified Survey Land Divisions
8 Design Standards -- Streets
-9 Design Standards -- Block Design
10 Design Standards -- Lots
11 Drainage System

14-1-12 Extra-Size or Off-Site Improvements

14-1-13 Non-Residential Subdivisions

14-1-14 Requirements and Design Standards for Public Improvements
14-1-15 Easements

14-1-16 Variations and Exceptions

14-1-17 Public Parks and Sites For Other Public Areas

14-1-18 Enforcement, Penalties and Remedies

SEC. 14-1-1 INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE.

(2)

(b)

Introduction. In accordance with the authority granted by Section 236.45 of the

Wisconsin Statutes and for the purposes listed in Section 236.01 and 236.45 of

the Wisconsin Statutes, the Village Board of the Village of Colfax does hereby

ordain as follows:

(1) The provisions of this Chapter shall be held to be minimum requirements
adopted to promote the health, safety, morals, comfort, prosperity and
general welfare of the Village.

(2) This Chapter shall not repeal, impair or modify private covenants or public
ordinances, except that it shall apply whenever it imposes stricter restric-
tions on land use.

Purpose. The purpose of this Chapter is to promete the public health, safety,

convenience and general welfare. The regulations are designed to lessen

congestion in the streets; to foster the orderly layout and use of land; to insure
safety from fire, flooding, panic and other dangers; to provide optimum light and
air; to discourage overcrowding of the land; to lessen concentration of popula-
tion; to facilitate adequate provision of transportation, public water and
sewerage, schools, parks, playgrounds and other public necessities; and to



Sec. 14-1-1  Subdivision Regulations

facilitate the further division of large tracts of land into smaller parcels. The
regulations are made with the reasonable consideration of, but not limited to, the
present character of the Village and its environs, with the objectives of
conserving the value of the land and improvements placed thereon, providing the
most appropriate environment for human habitation, encouraging commerce and
industry and providing for the most appropriate use of land in the Village.

State Law Reference: Chapter 236, Wis. Stats.

SEC. 14-1-2 DEFINITIONS.

(a) The following definitions shall be applicable in this Chapter.

ey
@)

3)
4)

)
(6)

™
(®)

©
(10)

(11)

(12)

Alley. A public right-of-way which normally affords a secondary means of
vehicular access to abutting property.
Arterial Street. A street which provides for the movement of relatively
heavy traffic to, from or within the Village. It has a secondary function
of providing access to abutting land.
Block. An area of land within a subdivision that is entirely bounded by a
combination or combinations of streets, exterior boundary lines of the
subdivision and streams or water bodies.
Collector Street. A street which collects and distributes internal traffic
within an urban area such as a residential neighborhood, between arterial
and local streets. It provides access to abutting property.
Commission. The Plan Commission created by the Village Board pursuant to
Section 62.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes, if one is created.
Comprehensive Development Plan. A comprehensive plan prepared by the
Village indicating the general locations recommended for the various
functional classes of land use, ¥laccs and structures, and for the general
physical development of the Village and includes any unit or part of such
plan separately adopted and any amendment to such plan or parts thereof.
Cul-de-sac. A short street having but one (1) end open to traffic and the
other end being permanently terminated in a vehicular turnaround.
Division of Land. Where the title or any part thereof is transferred by the
execution of a land contract, an option to purchase, an offer to purchase
and acceptance, a deed, or a certified survey, and a division occurs where
any of the above transactions change the title from a joint tenancy to a
tenancy in common or from tenancy in common to joint tenancy.
Easement. The area of land set aside or over or through which a liberty,
privilege or advantage in land, distinct from ownership of the land, is
anted to the public or some particular person or part of the public.
xtraterritorial Plat ApgrovaFJurisdiction. The unincorporated area within
one and one-half (1-1/2) miles of a fourth-class city or a village and within
three (3) miles of all other cities.
Final Plat. The final map, drawing or chart on which the subdivider’s plan
of subdivision is presented for approval and which, if approved, will be
submitted to the Dunn County Register of Deeds. Said plat must conform
to all State laws.
Frontage Street. A minor street auxiliary to and located on the side of an
arterial street for control of access and for service to the abutting
development.




(13)

(14)
(15)

(16)
17
)
19)
&
¢2)

(23)

(24)
25)
(26)

(27)
(28)

(29)

(30)

Sec. 14-1-2  Subdivision Regulations

Improvement, Public. Any sanitary sewer, storm sewer, open channel, water

main, roadway, park, parkway, public access, sidewalk, pedestrian way,

planting strip or other facility for which the Village may ultimately assume

the responsibility for maintenance and operation.

Local Street. A street of little or no continuity designed to provide access

to abutting property and leading into collector streets.

Lot. A parcel of land having frontage on a public street or ather officially

approved means of access, occupied or intended to be occupied by a

principal structure or use and sufficient in size to meet the lot width, lot

frontage, lot area, yard, parking area and other open space provisions of

this Chapter and any applicable zoning ordinance.

Lot. Area. The area contained within the exterior boundaries of a lot

excluding streets, easements and land under navigable bodies of water.

Lot, Corner. A lot abutting intersecting streets at their intersection.

[ ot, Reversed Corner. A corner lot which is oriented so that it has its

rear lot line coincident with or parallel to the side lot line of the interior

Iot immediately to its rear.

Lot, Through. A lot having a pair of opposite lot lines along two (2) more

or less parallel public streets and which 1s not a corner lot. On a "through

lot," both street lines shall be deemed front lot lines.

Lot Lines. The peripheral boundaries of a lot as defined herein.

Lot Width. The width of a parcel of land measured along the front

building line.

Major Thoroughfare. A street used or intended to be used primarily for

fast or heavy through traffic. Major thoroughfares shall include freeways,

expressways and other highways and parkways, as well as arterial streets.

Marginal Access Street. A street which is parallel to and adjacent to

major thoroughfares and which provides access to abutting properties and

protection from traffic on the major street.

Minor Street. A street used, or intended to be used, primarily for access

to abutting properties.

Minor _Subdivision. The division of land by the owner or subdivider

resulting in the creation of not more than four (4) parcels or building sites.

Owner. Includes the plural as well as the singular and may mean either a

natural person, firm, association, partnership, private corporation, public or

quasi-public corporation, or combination of these.

Pedestrian Pathway. A public way, usually running at right angles to

streets, which is intended for the convenience of pedestrians only; it may

also provide public right-of-way for utilities.

Plat. The map, drawing or chart on which the subdivider’s plat of sub-

division is presented to the Village for approval.

Preliminary Plat. The preliminary plat map, drawing or chart indicating the

proposed layout of the subdivision to be submitted to the Village Board for

their consideration as to compliance with the Comprehensive Development

Plan and these regulations along with required supporting data.

Protective Covenants. Contracts entered into between private parties which

constitute a restriction on the use of all private property within a sub-

division for the benefit of the property owners and to provide mutual
rotection against undesirable aspects of development which would tend to

impair stability of values.




G

(33)

(34)

(35)

(36)

Sec. 14-1-2  Subdivision Regulations

Replat. The process of changing, or a map or plat which changes, the
boundaries of a recorded subdivision plat or part thereof. The legal
dividing of a large block, lot or outlot within a recorded subdivision plat
wi’t}lxout changing exterior boundaries of said block, lot or outlot is not a
replat.
Shorelands. Those lands within the following distances: one thousand
(1,000) feet from the high-water elevation of navigable lakes, ponds and
flowages or three hundred (300) feet from the high-water elevation of
navigable streams or to the landward side of the floodplain, whichever is
greater.
Subdivider. Any person, firm or corporation, or any agent thereof, dividing
or proposing to divide land resulting in a subdivision, minor subdivision or
replat.
Subdivision. The division of a lot, outlot, parcel, or tract of land by the
owner thereof or his agent for the purpose of transfer of ownership or
building development where the act of division creates five (5) or more
parcels or building sites of one and one-half (1-1/2) acres or less in area,
or where the act of division creates five (5) or more parcels or building
sites by successive division within a period of five (5) years, whether done
l&; the original owner or a successor Owner.

etlands. Those lands which are partially or wholly covered by marshland
flora and generally covered with shallow standing water or lands which are
wet and spongy due to high-water table.
Wisconsin Administrative Code. The rules of administrative agencies having
rule-making authority in Wisconsin, published in a loose-leaf, continual
revision system, as directed by Section 35.93 and Chapter 227 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, including subsequent amendments to those rules.

SEC. 14-1-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(a) Compliance. No person shall divide any land located within the jurisdictional
limits of these regulations which results in a subdivision, land division or a
replat as defined herein; no such subdivision, land division or replat shall be
entitled to record; and no street shall be laid out or improvements made to land
without compliance with all requirements of this Chapter and the following:

(b)

8
(€)
4)
)
(6)

The provisions of Ch. 236 and Sec. 80.08, Wis. Stats.

The rules of the Division of Health contained in Wis. Adm. Code for
Subdivisions H &5 not served by public sewer.

The rules of the Division of Highways, Wisconsin Department of Transpor-
tation contzined in Wis. Adm. Code for Subdivisions Hy 33, which abut a
state trunk highway or connecting street.

The rules of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources contained in
Wis. Adm. Code for Floodplain Management Program.

Comprehensive plans or components of such plans prepared by state,
regional, county or municipal agencies duly adopted by the Village Board.

All applicable local and county regulations, including zoning, sanitary,
building and official mapping ordinances.

Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction of these regulations shall include all lands within the
corporate limits of the Village of Colfax as well as the unincorporated area
within one and one-half (1-1/2) miles of the corporate limits as provided in Sec.
236.10 and 62.32, Wis. Stats. The provisions of this Chapter, as they apply to
divisions of tracts of land into less than five (5) parcels, shall not apply to:

(D

Transfers of interests in land by will or pursuant to court order;



(e)

(d)

Sec. 14-1-3  Subdivision Regulations

52) Leases for a term not to exceed ten (10) years, mortgages or easements,
3) The sale or exchange of parcels of land between owners of adjoining
property if additional lots are not thereby created and the lots resulting

are not reduced below the minimum sizes required by this Chapter or other
applicable laws or ordinances.

Certified Survey. Any division of land other than a subdivision as defined in

Sec. 236.02(8), Wis. Stats., shall be surveyed and a certified survey map prepared

as provided in Sec. 236.34, Wis. Stats.

Permits. No building permit shall be issued by the Village authorizing the

building on or improvement of any parcel of land not on record as of the

effective date of this Chapter until the provisions and requirements of this

Chapter have been met.

SEC. 14-14 PROCEDURE FOR SUBMITTING SUBDIVISIONS.

(2)

(b)

Preliminary Meetings. Before filing a preliminary plat, or certified survey, the
subdivider is encouraged to consult with the Village Board for advice regarding
general subdivision requirements. The subdivider shall also submit a location map
showing the relationship of the proposed subdivision to traffic arteries and
existing community facilities. This consultation is neither formal nor mandatory
but is intended to inform the subdivider of the purpose and objectives of these
regulations, the comprehensive plan, comprehensive plan comﬁonents and duly
adopted plan implementation devices of the Village and to otherwise assist the
subdivider in planning his development. In so doing, both the subdivider and
planning agency may reach mutual conclusions regarding the general program and
objectives of the proposed development and its possible effects on the neighbor-
hood and community. The subdivider will gain a better understanding of the
subsequent required procedures.

Preliminary Plat Review Within the Village.

(1) Submission. Before submitting a Final Plat for approval, the subdivider
shall prepare a Preliminary Plat and a letter of ap lication.  The
Preliminary Plat shall be prepared in accordance with this Chapter, and the
subdivider shall file an adequate number of copies of the Plat and the
application as required by this Section with the Village Clerk-Treasurer at
least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the Village Board at which
action is desired. e Village Clerk-Treasurer shall submit a copy of the
preliminary plat to the Village Engineer for review and written report of
their recommendations and reactions to the proposed plat.

(2) Public Improvements, Plans and Specifications. Simultaneously with the
filing of the preliminary plat of map, the owner shall file with the Village
Clerk-Treasurer five (5) complete sets of preliminary plans and specifica-
tions for the construction of any public improvements required by this
Chapter.

(3) Property Owners Association. The Village Board may require submission of
a draft of the legal instruments and rules for proposed property owners
associations when the subdivider proposes that common property within a
subdivision would be either owned or maintained by such an organization of
property owners. . .

(4) Affidavit. The surveyor preparing the preliminary plat shall certify on the
face of the plat that it is a correct representation of all existing land
divisions and features and that he has fully complied with the provisions of
this Chapter.



Sec. 14-1-4  Subdivision Regulations

(5) Supplementary Data to be Filed with Preliminary Plat. The following shall
also be filed with the preliminary plat:

a. A statement of the profposed use of lots stating type of residential
buildings with number o Eroposed dwelling units; types of business or
industry so as to reveal the effect of the development on traffic, fire
hazards and congestion of population; and

b. If any zoning changes are contemplated, the proposed zoming plan for
the areas, including dimensions; ancF

¢. Where the subdivider owns property adjacent to that which is being
proposed for the subdivision, the Village Board may require that the
subdivider submit a preliminary plat of the remainder of the property
so as to show the possible relationships between the proposed
subdivision and future subdivision. In any event, all subdivisions must
be shown to relate well with existing or potential adjacent subdivisions.

(6) Referral to Other Agencies. The Village Clerk-Treasurer shall, within two
(2) days after filing, transmit four (4) copies to the County Planning
ﬁlgency, two (2) copies to the Director of the Planning Function in the

isconsin Department of Local Affairs and Development, additional.copies

to the Director of the Planning Function for retransmission of two (2)

copies each to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation if the sub-

division abuts or adjoins a state trunk highway or a connecting street and
the Wisconsin Department of Health and éocial Services if the subdivision is
not served by the public sewer and provision for such service has not been
made, and an adequate number of copies to the Village Board. The County

Planning Agency, the Wisconsin Department of Local Affairs and Develop-

ment, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation and the Wisconsin

Department of Health and Social Services shall be hereinafter referred to as

objecting agencies.

(7) Drafting Standards. The subdivider shall submit to the Village Clerk-
Treasurer and to those agencies having the authori% to object to plats
under provisions in Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes copies of a
preliminary plat (or certified survey) based upon an accurate exterior
boundary survey by a registered land surveyor which shall show clearly the
proposed subdivision at a scale of not more than one (1) inch per one
hundred (100) feet having two (2) foot contour intervals, shall identify the
improvements (grading, tree planting, paving, installation of facilities and
dedications of land), easements which Lge subdivider proposes to make and
shall indicate by accompanying letter when the improvements will be
provided. Any proposed restrictive covenants for the land involved shall be
submitted.

(c) Prelimi Plat Approval Within the Village.

(1) The Village Board shall, within forty (40) days of the date the preliminary
plat was filed with the Village Clerk-Treasurer, approve, approve con-
ditionally or reject such plat and shall state, in writing, any conditions of
approval or reasons for rejection, unless the time is extended by agreement
by the subdivider. Failure of the Village Board to act within forty (40)
days or extension thereof shall constitute an approval of the ‘]I.l)jrcliminary
plat, unless other authorized agencies object to the plat. e Village
Clerk-Treasurer shall communicate to the subdivider the action of the
Village Board. If the plat or map is approved, the Village Clerk-Treasurer
shall endorse it for the Village Board.

(2) Approval or conditional approval of a Preliminary Plat shall not constitute
automatic approval of the Final Plat, except that if the Final Plat is
submitted within six (6) months of preliminary plat approval and conforms




()

Sec. 14-1-4  Subdivision Regulations

substantially to the preliminary plat layout as indicated in Section
236.11(1)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the Final Plat shall be entitled to
approval with respect to such layout. The Preliminary Plat shall be deemed
an expression of approval or conditional approval of the layout submitted as
a guide to the preparation of the Final Plat which will be subject to
further consideration by the Village Board at the time of its submission.
Should the subdivider desire to amend the preliminary plat as approved, he
may resubmit the amended plat which shall follow the same procedure,
except for the hearing and fee, unless the amendment is, in the opinion of
the Village Board, of such scope as to constitute a new plat, in which such
case it shall be refiled.

(d) Final Plat Review.

(D

2)

©)

4)

©)

The subdivider shall prepare a Final Plat and a letter of application in
accordance with this Chapter and shall file copies of the Plat and the
application with the Village Clerk-Treasurer at least ten (10) days prior to
the meeting of the Village Board at which action is desired. The owner or
subdivider shall file six (6) copies of the final plat not later than twelve
(12) months after the date of approval of the preliminary plat; otherwise,
the preliminary plat and final plat will be considered void unless an
extension is requested in writing by the subdivider and for good cause
granted by the Village. The owner or subdivider shall also submit at this
fime a current certified abstract of title or registered property report and
such other evidence as the Village Attorney may require showing title or
control in the applicant.

The Village Clerk-Treasurer shall, within two (2) days after filing, transmit
four (4) copies to the County Planning Agency, two (2) copies to the
Director of the Planning Function in the Wisconsin Department of Local
Affairs and Development, additional copies to the Director of the Planning
Function for retransmission of two (2) copies each to the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation if the subdivision abuts or adjoins a state
trunk highway or a connecting street and the Wisconsin Department of
Health and Social Services if the subdivision is not served by a public
sewer and provision for service has not been made, and the original Final
Plat and adequate copies to the Village Board. The County Planning
Agency, the Wisconsin Department of Local Affairs and Development, the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation, and the Wisconsin Department of
Health and Social Services shall be hereinafter referred to as objecting
agencies.

The final plat shall conform to the preliminary plat as approved and to the
requirements of all applicable ordinances and state laws and shall be
submitted for certification of those agencies having the authority to object
to the plat as provided by Section 236.12(2).

Simultaneously with the filing of the final plat or map, the owner shall file
with the Village Clerk-Treasurer six (6) copies of the final plans and
specifications of public improvements required by this Chapter.

e Village Clerk-Treasurer shall refer two (2) copies of the final plat to
the Village Board, one (1) copy to the Engineer, and a copy each to the
telephone and power and other utility companies. The abstract of title or
registered property report shall be referred to the attorney for his
examination and report. The Village Clerk-Treasurer shall also refer the
final plans and specifications of public improvements to the Village
Engineer for review. The recommendations of the Village Engineer shall be
made within thirty (30) days of the filing of the final plat. The Village
Engineer shall examine the plat or map and final plans and specifications of



(e)

®

(8)

(h)

Sec. 14-1-4  Subdivision Regulations

public improvements for techmical details and, if he finds them satisfactory,
shall so certify in writing to the Village Board. If the plat or map or the
plans and specifications are not satisfactory, the Village Engineer shall
return them to the owner and so advise the Village Board.

(6) The Village Board shall examine the Final Plat as to its conformance with
the approved Preliminary Plat, any conditions of approval of the Preliminary
Plat, this Chapter and all ordinances, rules, regulations, comprehensive plans
and comprehensive plan components which may affect it.

Partial Platting. The Final Plat may, if permitted by the Village Board, consti-

tute only that portion of the approved Preliminary Plat which the subdivider

Ercposes to record at the time.

inal Plat Approval.

(1) The objecting agencies shall, within twenty (20) days of the date of
receiving their copies of the Final Plat, notify the subdivider and all other
approving and objecting agencies of any objections. If there are not
objections, they shall so certify on the face of the copy of the Plat and
shall return that copy to the Village Board. If an objecting agency fails to
%fl:t within twenty (20) days, it shall be deemed to have no objection to the

at.

(2) If the Final Plat is not submitted within twelve (12) months of the last-
required approval of the Preliminary Plat, the Village Board may refuse to
approve the Final Plat,

(3) The Village Board shall, within sixty (60) days of the date of filing the
original Final Plat with the Village Clerk-Treasurer, approve or reject such
Plat unless the time is extended by agreement with the subdivider. If the
Plat is rejected, the reasons shall be stated in the minutes of the meeting
and a written statement of the reasons forwarded to the subdivider. The
Village Board may not inscribe its approval on the Final Plat unless the
Village Clerk-Treasurer certifies on the fact of the Plat that the copies
were forwarded to objecting agencies as required herein, the date thereof
and that no objections have been filed within twenty (20) days or, if filed,
have been met.

(4) Failure of the Village Board to act within sixty (60) days, the time having
not been extended and no unsatisfied objections having been filed, the plat
shall be deemed approved.

(5) After the Final P?at has been approved by the Village Board and required
improvements either installed or a contract and sureties insuring their
installation is filed, the Village Clerk-Treasurer shall cause the certificate
inscribed upon the Plat attesting to such approval to be duly executed and
the Plat returned to the subdivider for recording with the county register
of deeds. The register of deeds cannot record the Plat unless it is offered
within thirty (30) days from the date of last approval.

(6) The subdivider shall file ten (10) copies of the Final Plat with the Village
Clerk-Treasurer for distribution to the approving agencies and other
affected agencies for their files.

Engineering Fee. The subdivider shall pay a fee equal to the actual cost to the

Village for all engineering work incurred by the Village in connection with the

plat or certified survey map.

Administrative Fee. The subdivider shall pay a fee equal to the cost of any

legal, administrative or fiscal work which may be undertaken by the Village in

connection with the plat or certified survey map.



Sec. 14-1-5  Subdivision Regulations

SEC. 14-1-5 TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS FOR PRELIMINARY PLATS.

(a) General. A preliminary plat shall be required for all subdivisions and shall be
based upon a survey by a registered land surveyor and the plat prepared on
tracing cloth or paper of good quality at a scale of not more than one hundred
(100) feet to the inch and shall show correctly on its face the following
information:

(b)

2

d

©)

Title under which the proposed subdivision is to be recorded.

Location of the proposed subdivision by government lot, quarter section,

township, range, county and state.

Date, Scale and North Point.

I\lIlamcs and Addresses of the owner, subdivider and land surveyor preparing

the plat.

EntEe Area contiguous to the proposed plat owned or controlled by the

subdivider shall be included on the preliminary plat even though only a

Eortion of said area is proposed for immediate development. The Village
oard may waive this requirement where it is unnecessary to fulfill the

purposes and intent of this Chapter and under hardship would result from

strict application thereof,

Plat Data. All preliminary plats shall show the following:

(D)

2

€)

(4)
©)

(6)

Exact Length and Bearing of the exterior boundaries of the proposed
subdivision referenced to a cornmer established in the U.S. Public Land
Survey and the total acreage encompassed thereby.

Locations of all Existing Property Boundary Lines, structures, drives,
streams and water courses, marshes, rock outcrops, wooded areas, railroad
tracks and other significant features within the tract being subdivided or
immediately adjacent thereto.

Location. Right-of-Way Width and Names of all existing streets, alleys or
other public ways, easements, railroad and utility rights-of-way and all
section and quarter section lines within the exterior boundaries of the plat
or immediately adjacent thereto.

Location and Names of any Adjacent Subdivisions, parks and cemeteries and
owners of record of abutting unplatted lands.

Type. Width and Elevation of any existing street pavements within the
exterior boundaries of the plat or immediately adjacent thereto, together
with any legally established centerline elevations.

Location, Size and Invert Elevation of any existing sanitary or storm
sewers, culverts and drain pipes, the location of manholes, catchbasins,
hydrants, electric and communication facilities, whether overhead or
underground and the location and size of any existing water and gas mains
within the exterior boundaries of the plat or immediately adjacent thereto.
If no sewers or water mains are located on or immediately adjacent to the
tract, the nearest such sewers or water mains which might be extended to
serve the tract shall be indicated by the direction and distance from the
tract, size and invert elevations.

Corporate _Limit Iines within the exterior boundaries of the plat or
immediately adjacent thereto.

Existing Zoning on and adjacent to the proposed subdivision.

Contours within the exterior boundaries of the plat and extending to the
centerline of adjacent public streets to National Map Accuracy Standards
based upon Mean Seal Level Datum at vertical intervals of not more than
two (2) feet. At least two (2) permanent bench marks shall be located in
the immediate vicinity of the plat; the location of the bench marks shall be
indicated on the plat, together with their elevations referenced to Mean Sea




(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)

(16)
(17)

(%

(20)

@1)

Sec. 14-1-5  Subdivision Regulations

Level Datum and the monumentation of the bench marks clearly and
completely described. Where, in the judgment of the Village Board, undue
hardship would result because of the remoteness of the parcel from a mean
sea level reference elevation, another datum may be used.

High-Water Elevation of all ponds, streams, lakes, flowages and wetlands
within the exterior boundaries of the plat or located within one hundred
(100) feet therefrom.

Water Elevation of all ponds, streams, lakes, flowages and wetlands within
the exterior boundaries of the plat or located within one hundred (100) feet
therefrom at the date of the survey.

Floodland and Shoreland Boundaries and the contour line lying a vertical
distance of two (2) feet above the elevation of the one hundred (100) year
recurrence interval flood or, where such data is not available, two (2) feet
above the elevation of the maximum flood of record within the exterior
boundaries of the plat or within one hundred (100) feet therefrom.

Soil Types and their boundaries, as shown on the operational soil survey
maps prepared by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation
Service.

[ ocation and Results of Percolation Tests within the exterior boundaries of
the plat conducted in accordance with Section H 85.06 of the Wisconsin
Administrative Code where the subdivision will not be served by public
sanitary sewer service.

Location. Width and Names of all proposed streets and public rights-of-way
such as alleys and easements.

Approximate Dimensions of All Tots together with proposed lot and block
numbers.

Location and Approximate Dimensi of any sites to be reserved or
dedicated for parEE, playgrounds, drainageways or other public use or which
are to be used for group housing, shopping centers, church sites or other
nonpublic uses not requiring lotting.

Approximate Radii of all Curves.

Any Proposed Take and Stream Access with a small drawing clearly
indicating the location of the proposed subdivision in relation to access.

Any Proposed Lake and Stream improvement or relocation, and notice of
application for approval by the Division of Environmental Protection,
Department of Natural Resources, when applicable.

Where the Village Board finds that it requires additional information
relative to a particular problem presented by a proposed development in
order to review the preliminary plat, it shall have the authority to request
in writing such information from the subdivider.

(c) Submission. The subdivider may consult with the Village Board regarding the
requirements for minor subdivisional certified surveys before submission of the
final map. Following consultation, a copy of the final map in the form of a
certified survey map shall be submitted to the Village.

Proposed Layout. The Village Board may require a proposed subdivision layout of
all or part of the contiguously owned land even though division is not planned at
the time.

Requirements. To the extent reasonably practicable, the certified survey/minor
subdivision plat shall comply with the provisions of this Chapter relating to
general requirements, design standards and required improvements. Conveyance
by metes and bounds shall be prohibited where the lot(s) involved is less than
one and one-half (1-1/2) acres or three hundred (300) feet in width.

(d)

Jo



Sec. 14-1-6  Subdivision Regulations

SEC. 14-1-6 REPLAT.

(a)

(b)

When it is Emposed to replat a recorded subdivision, or part thereof, so as to
change the boundaries of a recorded subdivision, or part thereof, the subdivider
or person wishing to replat shall vacate or alter the recorded Plat as provided in
Sections 236.40 through 236.44 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The subdivider, or
person wishing to replat, shall then proceed as specified in Subsections (a)
through (f) of Section 14-1-4,

The Village Clerk-Treasurer shall schedule a public hearing before the Village
Board when a Preliminary Plat of a replat of lands within the Village is filed,
and shall cause notices of the proposed Replat and public hearing to be mailed
to the owners of all properties within the limits of the exterior boundaries of
the proposed Replat and to the owners of all properties within two hundred (200)
feet of the exterior boundaries of the proposed Replat.

SEC. 14-1-7 CERTIFIED SURVEY LAND DIVISIONS.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Certified Survey Requirements. When it is proposed to divide land into two (2)

or no more than four (4) building sites, any one (1) of which is less than thirty-

five (35) acres, or when it is proposed to divide a block, lot or outlot into not

more than four (4) parcels or building sites within a recorded subdivision plat

without changing the exterior boundaries of the block, lot or outlot, the

subdivider shall subdivide by use of a certified survey map, prepared in accor-

dance with Sec. 236.34, Wis. Stats., and this Chapter.

Submission and Review. The subdivider is encouraged to first consult with the

Village Board regarding the requirements for certified surveys before submissions

of the final map. Following consultation, twa (2) copies of the final map in the

form of a certi?ied survey map shall be submitted to the Village. The certified

survey shall be reviewed, approved or disapproved by the Village Board pursuant

to the procedures used for Preliminary Plats in Section 14-1-4, including notice

and hearing requirements. The Village Board shall approve, conditionally approve

and thereby require the submission of a corrected certified survey map, or reject

such certified survey map within sixty (60) days from the date of filing of the

map unless the time is extended by agreement with the applicant.

Additional Information. The Certified Survey Map shall show correctly on its

face, in addition to the information required by Sec. 236.34, Wis. Stats., the

following:

(1) All Existing Buildings, watercourses, drainage ditches and other features
pertinent to proper division.

(2) Setbacks or Building Lines required by the Village Board and applicable
zoning ordinances.

(3) All Lands Reserved for future acquisition.

4) Date of the Map.

5) Graphic Scale.

6) Name and Address of the owner, subdivider and surveyor.

7) Square Footage of each parcel.

8

Present Zoning for the parcels.
State Plane Coordinate System. Where the map is located within a quarter

section, the corners of which have been relocated, monumented and coordinated
by the Village, the map shall be tied directly to one of the section or quarter
corners so relocated, monumented and coordinated. The exact grid bearing and
distance of such tie shall be determined by field measurements, and the material
and Wisconsin state plane coordinate of the monument marking the relocated




(e)

®

(8

(h)

Sec. 14-1-7  Subdivision Regulations

section or quarter corner to which the map is tied shall be indicated on the
map. All distances and bearings shall be referenced to the Wisconsin Coordinate
Systemn, South Zone, and adjusted to the Village control survey.

Certificates. The surveyor shall certify on the face of the certified survey map
that he has fully complied with all the provisions of this Chapter. The Town
Board, after a recommendation by the reviewing agencies, shall certify its
approval on the face of the map.

Street Dedication. Dedication of streets and other public areas shall require, in
addition, the owner’s certificate and the mortagee’s certificate in substantially
the same form as required by Sec. 236.21(2)(a), Wis. Stats.

Recordation. The subdivider shall record the map with the County Register of
Deeds within thirty (30) days of its approval by the Village Board and any other
approving agencies. ailure to do so shaﬁ necessitate a new review and
reapproval of the map by the Village Board.

Requirements. To the extent reasonably practicable, the certified survey shall
comply with the provisions of this Chapter relating to general requirements,
design standards and required improvements. Conveyance by metes and  bounds
shall be prohibited where the lotgs) involved is less than one and one-half
(1-1/2) acres or three hundred (300) feet in width.

SEC. 14-1-8 DESIGN STANDARDS - STREETS.

(2)

(b)

(©
(d)

(e)

(f)

Compliance with Statutes. In laying out a subdivision, the owner shall conform
to the provisions of Chapter 236, Wis. Stats., and all applicable code sections.
In all cases where the requirements of this Chapter are different from the
requirements of Chapter 236, the more restrictive provision shall apply.
Dedication. The subdivider shall dedicate land and improve streets as provided
in this Chapter. Streets shall be located with due regard for topographical
conditions, natural features, existing and proposed streets, utilities and land uses
and public convenience and safety. Streets shall conform to the official map of
the Village.
Sufficient Frontage. All lots shall have sufficient frontage on a public street to
allow access by emergency and service motor vehicles.
Compliance with Comprehensive Plan. The arrangement, character, extent, width,
grade and location of all streets shall conform to the Village’s Comprehensive
Development Plan and to this Chapter and shall be considered in their relation
to existing and planned streets, to reasonable circulation of traffic, to
topographical conditions, to run-off of storm water, to public convenience and
safety, and in their appropriate relation to the proposed uses of the land to be
served by such streets. e arrangement of streets in new subdivisions shall
make provision for the appropriate continuation at the same width of the
existing streets in adjoining areas.
Areas Not Covered by Official Map. In areas not covered by the Comprehensive
Plan, the layout of streets shall conform to the plan for the most advantageous
development of adjoining areas of the neighborhood. Streets shall be designed
and located in relation to existing and officially planned streets, topography and
natural terrain, streams and lakes and existing tree growth, public convenience
and safety and in their appropriate relation to the proposed use of the land to
be served by such streets.
Street Classifications. Streets shall be classified as indicated below.
(1) Arterial Streets. Arterial streets shall be arranged to provide through
traffic for a heavy volume of vehicles.

12



(2

(b)

(i)
@

(k)

(0

Sec. 14-1-8  Subdivision Regulations

(2) Collector Streets. Collector streets shall be arranged so as to provide
ready collection of traffic from residential areas and conveyance of this
traffic to the major street and highway system and shall be properly
related to (sjpecial traffic generators such as schools, churches and shopping
centers and other concentrations of population and to the major streets
into which they feed.

(3) Minor Streets. Minor streets shall be arranged to conform to the topog-
raghy, to discourage use by through traffic, to permit the design of
efficlent storm and sanitary sewerage systems and to require the minimum

street area necessary to provide safe and convenient access to abutting

roperty.

E’ronosed Streets. Proposed streets shall extend to the boundary lines of
the tract being subdivided unless prevented by tOpO%raph or other physical
conditions or unless, in the opinion of the Village oard): such extension is
not necessary or desirable for the coordination of the layout of the
subdivision or land division or for the advantageous development of the
adjacent tracts.

(5) Reserve Strips. Reserve strips shall not be provided on any plat to control
access to streets or alleys, except where control of such strips is placed
with the Village under conditions approved by the Village Board.

(6) Alleys. Alleys may be provided in commercial and industrial districts for
off-street loading and service access, but shall not be approved in non-
multiple family residential districts. Dead-end alleys shall not be approved
and alleys shall not connect to a major thoroughfare.

Extraterritorial Streets. Streets located in the extraterritorial plat jurisdiction

of the Village of Colfax must also comply with the minimum town road standards

of Section 86.26, Wis. Stats.

Continuation. Streets shall be laid out to provide for possible continuation

wherever topographic and other physical conditions permit. Provision shall be

made so that all proposed streets shall have a direct connection with, or be
continuous and in line with, existing, planned or platted streets with which they
are to connect. Proposed streets shallpbe extended to the boundary lines of the
tract to be subdivided, unless prevented by topography or other physical
conditions, or unless in the opinion of the Village Board such extension is not
necessary or desirable for the coordination of the layout of the subdivision with
existing layout or the most advantageous future development of adjacent tracts.

Dead-end streets not over five hundred (500) feet in length will be approved

when necessitated by the topography.

Minor Streets. Minor streets shall be so laid out so as to discourage their use

by through traffic.

Number of Intersections. The number of intersections of minor streets with

major streets shall be reduced to the practical minimum consistent with circu-

lation needs and safety requirements.

Frontage Roads. Where a subdivision abuts or contains an existing or proposed

arterial highway, the Village Board may require a frontage road, nonaccess

reservation along the rear of the property contiguous to such highway or such
other treatment as may be necessary to ensure safe, efficient traffic flow and
adequate protection of residential properties.

Arterial Street and Highway Protection. Whenever the proposed subdivision

contains or is adjacent to a major street or highway, adequate protection of

residential properties, limitation of access and separation of through and local

traffic shall be provided by reverse frontage, with screen planting contained in a

nonaccess reservation along the rear property line, or by the use of frontage

streets.

(4)

\3



Sec. 14-1-8  Subdivision Regulations

(m) Private Streets. Private streets shall not be approved nor shall public improve-

(n)
(0)
)

(q)

(r)

()

(u)

ments be approved for any private street; all streets shall be dedicated for public

use.

Visibility. Streets shall afford maximum visibility and safety and shall intersect

at right angles where practicable.

Tangents. A tangent at least one hundred (100) feet long shall be required

between reverse curves on arterial and collector streets.

Street Grades.

(1) Unless necessitated by exceptional topography subject to the approval of
the Village Board, the maximum centerline grade of any street or public
way shall not exceed the following:

Arterial streets: six percent (6%).

Collector streets: eight percent (8%).

Minor streets, alleys and frontage streets: ten percent (10%).

Pedestrian ways: twelve percent (12%) unless steps of acceptable design
are provided.

The grade of any street shall in no case exceed twelve percent (12%)
or be less than one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%).

(2) Street grades shall be established wherever practicable so as to avoid
excessive grading, the promiscuous removal of ground cover and tree
growth, and general leveling of the topography. All changes in street
grades shall be connected by vertical curves of a minimum length equivalent
in feet to fifteen (15) times the algebraic difference in the rates of grade
for major streets and one-half (1/2) this minimum for all other streets.

Radii of Curvature. When a continuous street centerline deflects at any one (1)

point by more than ten (10) degrees, a circular curve shall be introduced having

a radius of curvature on said centerline of not less than the following:

Arterial streets and highways: five hundred (500) feet.
Collector streets: three hundred (300) feet.
Minor streets: one hundred (100) feet.

Vertical Curves. All changes in street grades shall be connected by vertical

curves of a minimum length in feet equivalent to thirty (30) times the algebraic

difference in grade for major thoroughfares and twenty (20) times this algebraic
difference for all other streets.

Half Streets. Where a half street is adjacent to the subdivision, the other half

street shall be dedicated by the subdivider.

Intersections.

(1) Property lines at street intersections of major thoroughfares shall be
rounded with a radius of fifteen (15) feet or of a greater radius where the
Village Board considers it necessary.

(2) Provisions of the Zoning Code with respect to Traffic Visibility at street
intersections shall also apply here.

(3) Streets shall intersect each other at as nearly right angles as topography
and other limiting factors of good design permit.

(4) Number of streets converging at one (1) intersection shall be reduced to a
minimum, preferably not more than two (2).

Alleys.

(1) ~Alleys shall be provided in all commereial and industrial districts, except
that the Village Board may waive this requirement where other definite and
assured provisions are made for service access, such as off-street loading
and parking, consistent with and adequate for the uses proposed. No alleys
shall connect with a major thoroughtare. Alleys in residential areas other
than those zoned for multiple-family use shall not be permitted.

(2) Dead-end alleys are prohibited.

B



Sec. 14-1-8  Subdivision Regulations

(v) Street Names. New street names shall not duplicate the names of existing
streets, but streets that are continuations of others already in existence and
named shall bear the names of the existing streets. Street names shall be
subject to approval by the Village Board.

(w) Street Design Standards.

(1) Standards. The minimum right-of-way and roadway width of all proposed
streets and alleys shall be as specified in Section 14-1-14.

(2) Cul-de-sacs. Cul-de-sac streets designed to have one (1) end permanently
closed shall not exceed five hundred (500) feet in length. | cul-de-sac
streets designed to have one (1) end permanently closed shall terminate in
a circular turnaround having a minimum right-of-way radius of sixty (60)
feet and a minimum inside curb radius of forty (40) feet.

(3) Temporary Dead-ends or Cul-de-sacs. All temporary dead-ends shall have a
maximum length of eight hundred (800) feet and a temporary cul-de-sac
shall have a minimum right-of-way radius of sixty (60) feet and a minimum
inside curb radius of forty (40) feet.

(x) Limited Access Highway and Railroad Right-of-way Treatment. Whenever the
proposed subdivision contains or is adjacent to a limited access highway or
railroad right-of-way, the design shall provide the following treatment: _

(1) Subdivision Lots. When lots within the proposed subdivision back upon the
right-of-way of an existing or proposed limited access highway or a
railroad, a planting strip at least t!l?lirty (30) feet in depth shall be provided
adjacent to the highway or railroad in addition to the normal lot depth.
This strip shall be part of the platted lots but shall have the following
restriction lettered on the face of the plat: "This strip reserved for the
planting of trees and shrubs, the building of structures hereon prohibited."

(2) Commercial and Industrial Districts. Commercial and industrial districts
shall have provided, on each side of the limited access highway or railroad,
streets approximately parallel to and at a suitable distance from such
highway or railroad for the appropriate use of the land between such
?treets and highway or railroad, but not less than one hundred fifty (150)
eet.

(3) Streets Parallel to a Limited Access Highway. Streets parallel to a limited

access highway or railroad right-of-way, when intersecting a major street
and highway or collector street which crosses said railroad or highway,
shall be located at a minimum distance of two hundred fifty (250) feet from
said highway or railroad right-of-way. Such distance, where desirable and
practicable, shall be determined with due consideration of the minimum
distance required for the future separation of grades by means of
appropriate approach gradients.

(4) Minor Streets. Minor streets immediately adjacent and parallel to railroad
rights-of-way shall be avoided, and location of minor streets immediately
adjacent to arterial streets and highways and to railroad rights-of-way shall
be avoided in residential areas.

SEC. 14-1-9 DESIGN STANDARDS — BLOCK DESIGN.

(a) Length; Arrangement. The lengths, widths and shapes of blocks shall be
appropriate for the topography and the type of development contemplated, but
block length in residential areas shall not exceed one thousand two hundred
(1,200) feet nor have less than sufficient width to provide for two (2) tiers of
lots of appropriate depth between street lines. As a general rule, blocks shall
not be less than five hundred (500) feet in length. Blocks shall be so designated



(b)

()

Sec. 14-1-9  Subdivision Regulations

as to provide two (2) tiers of lots, unless it adjoins a railroad, major thorough-
fare, river or park where it may have a single tier of lots.
Pedestrian Pathways. Pedestrian pathways, not less than twelve (12) feet wide,
may be required by the Village Board through the center of a block more than
nine hundred (900§ feet long, where deemed essential to provide circulation or
access to schools, playgrounds, shopping centers, transportation and other
community facilities,
Trees. The Village Board may require that certain species of trees be planted on
both sides of all streets. Street trees when planted shall not be less than sixty
(60) feet apart with a minimum of one (1) per lot. They should preferably be
ﬁlaced six (6) to twenty (20) feet inside the property line rather than in the
oulevard. The minimum size and type to be planted shall conform to the
provisions of applicable ordinances.

SEC. 14-1-10 DESIGN STANDARDS - LOTS.

(2)

(b)

(d)

(e)
®
()
(h)

(1)
§)
(k)

M

Size, shape and orientation of lots shall be appropriate for the location of
topography of the subdivision and for the type of development contemplated,
provided that no lot shall be smaller in area than the minimum lot size for the
appropriate zone as established by the Zoning Code.

Lot dimensions and setbacks shall conform to the requirements of the Zoning
Code for the appropriate district in which the property is located.

Depth and width of properties reserved or laid out for commercial or industrial
Fu oses shall be adequate to provide for the off-street service and parking
acilities required by the type of use and development contemplated, as required
by the Zoning Code.

Residential lots fronting on major streets and highways shall be platted with
extra depth or design or alleviate the effect of major street traffic on residen-
tial occupancy.

Corner lots for residential use shall have extra width to permit building setback
from both streets, as required by the Zoning Code.

Every lot shall abut or face a public street. Lots outside the corporate limits
may abut or face a private street, if permitted by the Village Board.

?idc lot lines shall be substantially at right angles to or radial to abutting street
ines.

In case a tract is divided into parcels of more than one and one-half (1-1/2)
acres in areas, such parcels shall be so arranged to permit redividing into
parcels in accordance with this Chapter and with the Zoning Code.

Double frontage and reversed frontage lots shall be avoided except where
necessary to provide separation of residential development from traffic arteries
or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography and orientation.

In the subdividing of any land, regard shall be shown for all natural features,
such as tree growth, water courses, historic spots or similar conditions which, if
preserved, will add attractiveness and stability to the proposed development.

All remnants of lots below minimum size left over aﬁer subdividing of a larger
tract must be added to adjacent lots, or a plan shown as to future use rather
than allowed to remain as unusable parcels.

In the case where a proposed plat is adjacent to a limited access highway, other
major highway or thoroughfare, there shall be no direct vehicular access from
individual lots to such streets and roads. In the platting of small tracts of land
fronting on limited access highways or thoroughfares where there is no other
alternative, a temporary entrance may be granted; as neighboring land becomes

16



Sec. 14-1-10  Subdivision Regulations

subdivided and more preferable access arrangements become possible, such
temporary access permits shall become void.

SEC. 14-1-11 DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

(2)

(®)

(c)

(d)

Drainage System Required. A drainage system shall be designed and constructed
by the subdivider to provide for the proper drainage of the surface water of the
subdivision and the drainage area olP which it is a part. A final plat shall not
be approved until the subdivider shall submit plans, profiles and specifications as
specified in this Section, which have been prepared by a registered professional
engineer and approved by the Village Engineer.

Drainage System Plans.

(1) The subdivider shall submit to the Village Engineer and Village Board a
report on the ability of existing watercourse channels, storm sewers,
culverts and other improvements pertaining to drainage or flood control
within the subdivision to handle the additional runoff which would be
generated by the development of the land within the subdivision.
Additional information shall be submitted to adequately indicate that
provision has been made for disposal of surface water without any damage
to the developed or undeveloped land downstream or below the proposed
subdivision. The report shall also include:

a. Estimates of the quantity of storm water entering the subdivision
naturally from areas outside the subdivision.

b. Quantities of flow at each inlet or culvert.

c. Location, sizes and grades of required culverts, storm drainage sewers
and other required appurtenances.

(2) A grading plan for the streets, blocks and lots shall be submitted by the
subdivider for the area within the subdivision.

(3) The design criteria for storm drainage systems shall be based upon infor-
mation provided by the Village Engineer.

(4) Material and construction specifications for all drainage projects (i.e., pipe,
culverts, seed, sod, etc.) shall be in compliance with specifications provided
by the Village Board or Village Engineer.

Grading. The subdivider shall grade each subdivision in order to establish street,

lf:lock and lot grades in proper relation to each other and to topography as

ollows:

(1) The subdivider shall grade the full width of the right-of-way of all
proposed streets in accordance with the approved plans.

(2) Block grading shall be completed by one (1) or more of the following
methods:

a. A ridge may be constructed along the rear lot lines which provides for
drainage onto the streets,

b. Parts of all lots may be graded to provide for drainage to the street or
to a ditch along the rear lot line.

c¢. Draining across rear or side lot lines may be permitted provided that
drainage onto adjoining properties is skillfully controlled.

Drainage System Requirements. e subdivider shall install all the storm

drainage facilities indicated on the plans required in Subsection (a) of this

Section.

11



(e)

Sec. 14-1-11  Subdivision Regulations

(1) Street Drainage. All streets shall be provided with an adequate storm
drainage system. The street storm system shall serve as the primary
drainage system and shall be designed to carry street, adjacent land and
building storm water drainage. No storm water shall be permitted to be
run into the sanitary sewer system within the proposed subdivision.

(2) Off-Street Drainage, The design of the off-street drainage system shall
include the watershed affecting the subdivision and shall be extended to a
watercourse or ditch adequate to receive the storm drainage. When the
drainage system is outside of the street right-of-way, the subdivider shall
make provisions for dedicating an easement of the Village to provide for
the future maintenance of said system. Easements shall be a minimum of
twenty (20) feet, but the Village may require larger easements if more area
is needed due to topography, size of watercourse, etc.

Protection of Drainage Systems. The subdivider shall adequately protect all

ditches to the satisfaction of the Village Board and Village Engineer. Ditches

and open channels shall be seeded, sodded or paved depending upon grades and

soil types. (Generally ditches or channels witF]; grades up to one percent [1%)]

shall be seeded; those with grades up to four percent [4%] shall be sodded and

those with grades over four percent [4%] shall be paved.)

SEC. 14-1-12 EXTRA-SIZE OR OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

(2)

(b)

(©)

Design Capacity. All improvements shall be installed to satisfy the service
requirements for the service or drainage area in which the subdivision is located
and the improvements shall be of sufficient capacity to handle the expected
development of the overall service or drainage area involved.
Extra-Size Improvements. Where improvements in excess of the size needed to
serve just the proposed subdivision are required, the subdivider shall pay for the
total cost of improvements he is required to install to serve his subdivision. The
additional costs which result from the extra-size improvement shall be paid for
by the Village. Thus, when conditions within the whole drainage area will
require an eighteen (18) inch sanitary sewer, for example, and a twelve (12) inch
sewer will adequately serve the subdivision involved, the subdivider shall
construct the eighteen (18) inch utility and bill the Village for the difference in
material costs between a twelve (12) inch and eighteen (18) inch sewer pipe.

Off-Site Extensions. When streets or utilities are not available at the boundary

of the proposed subdivision, the Village, or its duly authorized representative,

shall require, as a prerequisite to approval of a final plat, assurances that such
improvement extensions shall be provided as follows:

(1) Extensions of utilities onto the property involved shall be adequate to serve
the total development requirements of the service or drainage area.
Utilities leaving the property shall be constructed in such a manner as to
make their extension practical for servicing the adjacent areas of the
service or drainage area.

(2) If the Village, or its duly authorized representative, find that extensions
across undeveloped areas would not be warranted as a special assessment to
the intervening properties or as a governmental expense until some future
time, the developer shall be required, if he wishes to proceed with the
development, to obtain necessary easements or rights-of-way and construct
and pay for such extensions. Such improvements shall be available for
connections by subdividers of adjoining land and the subdivider may
contract with adjacent property owners and/or subdividers of adjacent land
for reimbursement of the oversize and/or off-site improvements constructed.

1%



Sec. 14-1-12  Subdivision Regulations

(d) Where sanitary sewer lift stations and force mains are required to lift sewage to
the gravity system, the subdivider shall have plans, profiles and specifications
prepared for the installation of such facilities. The installation, inspection,
supervision and engineering fees for lift stations and/or force mains shall be
paid for by the subdivider unless otherwise determined and agreed upon the
Village Board.

SEC. 14-1-13 NON-RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISIONS.

(a) General.

(1) If a proposed subdivision includes land that is zoned for commercial or
industrial purposes, the layout of the subdivision with respect to such land
shall make such provisions as the Village may require.

(2) A non-residential subdivision shall also be subject to all the requirements of
site plan approval set forth in the Zoning Code. A non-residential sub-
division shall be subject to all the requirements of these regulations, as
well as such additional standards required by the Village and shall conform
to the lpmposed land use standards established by the Comprehensive Plan,
Official Map and Zoning Ordinance.

(b) Standards. In addition to the principles and standards in these regulations,
which are appropriate to the planning of all subdivisions, the applicant shall
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Village that the street, parcel and block
pattern proposed is specifically adapted to the uses anticipated and takes into
account other uses in the vicinity. e following principles and standards shall
be observed:

(1) Proposed industrial parcels shall be suitable in area and dimensions to the
types of industrial development anticipated.

(2) Street rights-of-way and pavement shall be adequate to accommodate the
type and volume of traffic anticipated to be generated thereupon.

(3) Special requirements may be imposed by the Village with respect to street,
curb, gutter and sidewalk design and construction.

(4) Special requirements may be imposed by the Village with respect to the
installation of public utilities, including water, sewer and storm water
drainage.

(5) Every effort shall be made to protect adjacent residential areas from
potential nuisance from a proposed commercial or industrial subdivision,
including the provision of extra depth in parcels backing up on existing or
potential residential development and provisions for permanently landscaped
buffer strips when necessary.

(6) Streets carrying non-residential traffic, especially truck traffic, shall not
normally be extended to the boundaries of adjacent existing or potential
residential areas.

SEC. 14-1-14 REQUIREMENTS AND DESIGN STANDARDS FOR PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS.

(a) General Requirements. The following required improvements shall be installed in
accordance with the standards of this Chapter and any additional engineering
standards and specifications which have been adopted by the Village Board and
filed with the \Ellage Clerk-Treasurer, Where standards and specifications have
not been adopted, the improvements shall be made in accordance with good
engineering practices.



Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

(b) Guarantee for Installation of Required Improvements.

(1)

)

Payment for Installation of Improvements. The required improvements to be
furnished and installed by the subdivider, which are listed and described in

this Chapter. The Village will install streets and curb and gutter and the
abutting Broperty owner will be assessed for the cost of the curb and
gutter. For any project to be considered where there will be Village
financial involvement, the plat must be approved by November 1st of the
ﬁear preceding the beginning of construction in order to comply with

udget process requirements; provided, however, that in the case of an
improvement, the cost of which would by general policy be assessed only in
part to the improved property and the remaining cost paid out of general
tax levy, provision may be made for payment of a portion of the cost by
the subdivider and the remaining portion of the cost by the Village. If any
improvement installed within the subdivision will be of substantial benefit
to land beyond the boundaries of the subdivision, provision may be made
for causing a portion of the cost of the improvement, representing the
benefit to such land, to be assessed against the same and in such case the
subdivider will be required only to pay for such portion of the whole cost
of said improvement as will represent the benefit to the property within
the subdivision.

Required Agreement Providing for Proper Installation of Improvements.

a. Prior to installation of any required improvements and prior to approval
of the final plat, the subdivider shall enter into a written contract with
the Village requiring the subdivider to furnish and construct said
improvements at his sole cost and in accordance with plans and
specifications and wusual contract conditions, which shall include
provision for supervision of details of construction by the Village
Engineer and grant to the Engineer authority to correlate the work to
be done under said contract by any subcontractors authorized to
proceed thereunder and with any other work being done or contracted
by the Village in the vicinity.

b. The agreement shall require the subdivider to make an escrow deposit
or in lieu thereof to furnish a performance bond or irrevocable letter
of credit, the amount of the deposit and the penal amount of the bond
to be equal to the Engineer’s estimate of the total cost of the im-
provements to be furnished under the contract, including the cost of
inspection.

¢.  On request of the subdivider, the contract may provide for completion
of part or all of the improvements covered thereby prior to acceptance
of the plat, and in such event the amount of the deposit or bond shall
be reduced in a sum equal to the estimated cost of the improvements
so completed prior to acceptance of the plat only. If the required
imProvements are not complete within the specified period, all amounts
held under performance bond shall be turned over and delivered to the
Village and applied to the cost of the required improvements. Any
balance remaining after such improvements have been made shall be
returned to the owner or subdivider., The Village Board, at its option,
may extend the bond period for an additional period not to exceed two
(2) years.

d. The time for completion of the work and the several parts thereof shall

be determined by the Village Board upon recommendation of the
Engineer after consultation with the subdivider.

20



(c)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

e. The subdivider shall pay the Village for all costs incurred by the
Village for review and inspection of the subdivision. This would
include pres;aration and review of plans and specifications by the
Engineer, Planner and Attorney, as well as other costs of a similar
nature.

Procedure.
(1) Construction Plans and Specifications. Construction plans for the required

@)

)

improvements conforming in all respects with the standards of the Village
Engineer and the ordinances of the Village shall be prepared at the sub-
divider’s expense by professional engineer who is registered in the State of
Wisconsin, and said plans shall contain his seal. Such plans, together with
the quantities of construction items, shall be submitted to the Village
Engineer for his approval and for his estimate of the total cost of the
required improvements; upon approval they shall become a part of the
contract required. Simultaneously with the filing of the preliminary plat
with the Village Clerk-Treasurer or as soon thereafter as practicable, copies
of the construction plans and specifications shall be furnished for the
following public improvements:

a. Street Plans and Profiles showing existing and proposed grades,
elevations and cross sections of required improvements.

b. Sanitary Sewer plans and profiles showing the locations, grades, sizes,
elevations and materials of required facilities.

c. Storm Sewer and Open Channel plans and profiles showing the loca-
tions, grades, sizes, cross sections, elevations and materials of required
facilities.

d. Water Main plans and profiles showing the locations, sizes, elevations
and materials of required facilities.

e. Erosion and Sedimentation Control plans showing those structures
required to retard the rate of mnoffp water and those grading and
excavating practices that will prevent erosion and sedimentation.

f. Planting Plans showing the locations, age, caliper, species and time of
planting of any required grasses, vines, shrubs and trees.

g. Additional special plans or information as required by Village officials.

Action by the Village Engineer. The Village Engineer shall review or cause

to be reviewed the plans and specifications for conformance with the

requirements of this Code of Ordinances and other pertinent Village design
standards recommended by the Village Engineer and approved by the Village

Board. [If he rejects the plans and specifications, he shall notify the

owner, who shall modify the plans or specifications or both accordingly.

When the plans and specifications are corrected, the Village Engineer shall

approve the plans and specifications for transmittal to the Village Board.

The Village Board shall approve the plans and specifications before the

improvements are installed.

Construction and Inspection.

a. Prior to starting any of the work covered by the plans approved above,
written authorization to start the work shall be obtained from the
Village Engineer upon receipt of all necessary permits and in accord-
ance with the construction methods of this Chapter.

b. Construction of all improvements required by this Chapter shall be
completed within two (2) years from the date of approval of the

reliminary plat by the Village Board, unless good cause can be shown
or the Village Board to grant an extension.

2



(d)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

c. During the course of construction, the Village Engineer shall make such
inspections as he deems necessary to insure compliance with the plans
and specifications as approved. The owner shall pay the actual cost
incurred by the Village for such inspections. This fee shall be the
actual cost to the Village of inspectors, engineers and other parties
necessary to insure satisfactory work.

(4) "As-Built" Plans. After completion of all public improvements and prior to
final acceptance of said improvements, the subdivider shall make or cause
to be made a map showing the actual location of all valves, manholes,
stubs, sewers and water mains and such other facilities as the Village
Engineer shall require. This map shall be in black pencil on tracing paper
and shall bear the signature and seal of a professional engineer registered
in Wisconsin, The presentation of the map shall be a condition of final
acceptance of the improvements and release of the surety bond assuring
their completion.

Street, Alley and Sidewalk Improvements. The developer shall censtruct streets

and sidewalks as outlines on the approved plans based on the requirements of

this Code of Ordinances:

(1) Grading. With the submittal of the final plat, the subdivider shall furnish
drawings which indicate the existing and proposed grades of streets and
alleys shown on the plat. Proposed grades will be reviewed by the Village
Engineer for conformance with Village standards and good engineering
practice. Street grades require the approved of the Village Board after
receipt of the Village Engineer’s recommendations. After approval of the
street grades, the subdivider shall grade the full width of the right-of-way
of the streets and alleys proposed to be dedicated, including the vision
clearance triangle on corner lots. In cases where an existing street right-
of-way is made a part of the plat or abuts the plat, the subdivider shall
grade that portion of the right-of-way between the existing pavement and
the property line. The bed for the roadways in the street rights-of-way
shall be graded to subgrade elevation. The Village Engineer shall approve
all grading within rights-of-way and said grading shall extend for a
sufficient distance beyond the right-of-way to insure that the established
grade will be preserved. Where electric and other communications or
utilities facilities are to be installed underground, the utility easements
shall be graded to within six (6) inches of the final grade by the sub-
divider, prior to the installation of such facilities; earth fill piles or mounds
of dirt or construction materials shall not be stored on such easement
areas.

(2) Street and Sidewalk Construction.

a, After sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water utilities have been
installed, the subdivider shall construct and dedicate as part of the
subdivision, streets, curbs and gutters and sidewalks including those
adjacent to platted lots in existing street rights-of-way abutting the
plat. The subdivider shall surface roadways to the widths prescribed by
the Village Board on recommendation of the Village Engineer.
Construction shall be to Village standard specifications for street
improvements.

b. The Village Board shall have the option of not requiring the construc-
tion of sidewalks within street rights-of-way in cases where it deter-
mines, after consultation with the Village Engineer, that sidewalks are
not necessary because of low density land use and low pedestrian
volumes or for access to schools and bus routes or for continuity of
existing sidewalk or bicycle route systems or because of a cul-de-sac or

22



(e)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

loop street pattern. Consideration shall also be given to the pattern of
development of adjoining lands and to the possibility of damage to
trees.

c. Dedicated walkways shall be improved by the subdivider to a grade and
width approved by the Village Engineer and with surfacing as required
by the Village Board based on the location and the amount and
character of use. The subdivider shall submit standard drawings
indicating the existing and proposed grades.

(3) Completion of Street and Sidewalk Construction.

a. Prior to any building permits being issued on lands adjacent to streets
and/or sidewalks, all street and sidewalk construction shall be com-
pleted by the subdivider, approved by the Village Engineer and accepted
by the Village Board.

b. The Village Engineer may issue a waiver of these requirements in
unusual or special circumstances such as excessively severe weather
conditions, heavy construction temporarily in area or construction
material shortages (i.e., cement, asphalt). The issuance of a waiver
shall be at the discretion of the Village Engineer and shall be based
upon the written request of the subdivider.

c. The subdivider requesting a waiver shall present such information and
documentation required by the Village Board. The waiver shall be in
written form and shall detail which improvement requirements are
temporarily waived and for what period of time.

(4) Curb and Gutter. When required by the Village Board, after the installation
of all utility and storm water drainage improvements, the subdivider shall
construct concrete curbs and gutters in accordance with plans and standard
specifications approved by the Village Board or its designee. Wherever
possible, provision shall be made at the time of construction for driveway
access curb cuts.

Construction Standards. All streets and highways constructed in the Village or

to be dedicated to the Village shall fully comply with the following construction

standards:

(1) Right-of-Way and Pavement Width. The minimum right-of-way and roadway
width of all proposed streets and alleys shall be as specified by the
comprehensive plan, comprehensive plan component or official map or, if no
width is specified therein, the minimum widths shall be as specified below.
Cross-sections for freeways and parkways should be based upon detailed
engineering studies.

a. Major thoroughfares are those streets which have the greatest impor-
tance to the development of the Village and which are shown on the
Official Map or have a width of right-of-way of not less than eighty-
six (86) feet for a median divided roadway nor less than eighty-six (86)
feet for a single roadway, as shown on Street Standards.

b. Collector-distributor streets are streets of somewhat less importance
than major thoroughfares and which are shown on the Official Map or
have a right-of-way width of not less than sixty-six (66) feet.

c. Local streets shall have a right-of-way width of not less than sixty
(60) feet, except for short dead end streets which may be fifty (50)
feet wide. They shall be provided with one (1) thirty-seven (37) foot
wide pavement.

d. Alleys provided to serve business, commercial or industrial areas shall
have a pavement of not less than sixteen (16) feet in width.

23



@
3)

4)

)

(6)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

Roadway Ditches. Where curb and gutter is not required by the Village for
rural cross-section streets, the minimum ditch slope shall be fifty one
hundredths percent (0.50%).

Roadway Base Thickness.

a. Residential streets shall have a minimum roadway base thickness of
eight (8) inches of compacted in-place crushed aggregate base course of
gradation No. 2 in the top layer and gradations No. 1 and No. 2 in the
lower level.

b. On commercial, arterial or other heavy-use streets, as determined by
the Village Engineer, a base course of eight (8) inches compacted shall
be constructed upon an inspected and approved subgrade, either well-
graded crushed gravel from a state-approved pit with a maximum stone
of one and one-half (1-1/2) inches and no greater than ten percent
(10%) by weight passing a No. 200 sieve or No. 3 crushed rock ap-
proximately six (6) inches in depth and one (1) or more layers of fine
aggregate, either three-fourths (3/4) inch crushed gravel, well-graded
with no greater than ten percent (10%) passing a No. 200 sieve, or
three-fourths (3/4) inch traffic-bound crushed rock. ;

c. In the case of commercial, arterial or other heavy-use roads, the
Village Board may, in the alternative to the above standards, have the
Village Engineer provide specifications for such roads after researching
the site(s) and conducting a soil analysis.

d. In any case, the Village Board shall have the sole discretion in
determining the use and construction classification to be adhered to.

e. In all cases, the base course shall be compacted to the extent necessary
to produce a condition so that there will be no appreciable displace-
ment of material laterally and longitudinally under traffic and shall
conform to line, grades and shape shown on the approved plans,
profiles and cross sections.

Roadway Sub-Base. Stable and nonorganic sub-base material is required.

Unstable and organic material must be subcut, removed and replaced with a

suitable granular of breaker-run material approved by the Village Engineer.

Pavement Thickness. Residential streets shall have a minimum of two and

one-half (2-1/2) inches thick compacted bituminous concrete pavement,

laced in two (2) layers - a binder course and one and one-half (1-1/2)

inches thick and a surface course of one (1) inch. On commercial, arterial
or other heavy-use streets, there shall be a minimum of three and one-half
(3-1/2) inches of bituminous concrete pavement, placed in two %2) layers-
a binder course of two (2) inches thick and a surface course of one and
one-half (1-1/2) inches thick. In the case of commercial, arterial or other
heavy-use roads, the Village Board may, in the alternative to the above
standards, have the Village Engineer provide specifications for paving such
roads after researching the site(s) and conducting a soil analysis. In any
case, the Village Board shall have the sole discretion in determining the use
and construction classification to be adhered to.

Roadway Culverts and Bridges. Roadway culverts and bridges shall be

constructed as directed by the Village Engineer and sized utilizing the

methods listed in Chapter 13, entitled "Drainage”, of the "Facilities De-
velopment Manual" of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation. All
roadway culverts shall be provided with concrete or metal apron endwalls.

24



®

(2)

(h)

(1)

@)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

(7) Driveway Culverts. —Driveway culverts shall be sized by the Village
Engineer (if appropriate). The culverts shall be placed in the ditch line at
elevations that will assure proper drainage, be provided with concrete,
metal or landscape timber endwalls, and shall comply with the provisions of
Title 6, Chapter 2.

Sanitary Sewerage System Design Standards. There shall be provided a sanitary
ewerage system in conformity with the master plan of sewers as approved by the
Village Board and/or sewerage district. The subdivider shall install adequate
sanitary sewer facilities and connect them to sewer mains subject to specifica-
tions and inspection of the Village Engineer. The subdivider shall pay all the
costs of all sanitary sewer work including the bringing of the sanitary sewer
from where it exists to the subdivision in question as well as providing all
sanitary sewer work within the subdivision. The cost of providing and installing
sewer pipe of sizes larger or at a greater depth than required to serve the area
shall be borne by the Village, as agreed upon between the land owner and the
Village Board prior to approval of the preliminary plat or certified survey map,
pursuant to this Chapter. The size, type and installation of all sanitary sewers
proposed to be constructed shall be in accordance with plans and standard
specifications approved by the Village.
Water Supply System Design Standards. There shall be provided a water supply
system in conformity with the master plan of the water system as approved by
the Village Board. The subdivider shaH construct water mains in such a manner
as to make adequate water service available to each lot within the subdivision.
If municipal water service is not available, the subdivider shall make provision
for adequate private water systems as specified in applicable ordinances. The
Village may require the installation of water laterals to the street lot line. The
size, type and installation of all public water mains proposed to be constructed
shall be in accordance with plans and standard specifications approved by the
Village. :
Storm Water Drainage Facilities. Pursuant to Section 14-1-10, the subdivider
shall provide storm water drainage facilities which may include curb and gutter,
catch basins and inlets, storm sewers, road ditches and open channels, as may be
required. All such facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydrau-
lically accommodate the twenty-five (23) year storm. Storm drainage facilities
shall be so designed as to present no hazard to life or property, and the size,
type and installation of storm water drains and sewers proposed to be
constructed shall be in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by
the Village Engineer. The subdivider shall pay all costs of all storm sewer work,
except that the subdivider shall not be required to pay for amy storm SEwers
that are required to bring the storm sewers to the subdivision nor shall they be
required to install any storm sewers that are more than eighteen (18) inches in
diameter.

Other Utilities. The subdividers shall cause gas, electrical power and telephone

facilities to be installed in such a manner as to make adequate service available

to each lot in the subdivision. No such electrical or telephone service shall be
located on overhead poles along the front lot lines unless otherwise allowed due
to exceptional topography or other physical barrier. Plans indicating the
proposed location of all gas, electrical power and telephone distribution and
transmission lines required to service the \/Plat shall be approved by the Village

Board and such map shall be filed with the Village Clerk-Treasurer.

Street Lamps. The subdivider shall install street lamps along all streets proposed

to be dedicated of a design compatible with the neighborhood and type of

development proposed. Such lamps shall be placed at each street intersection
and at such interior block spacing as may be required by the Village Board.

25



(k)
(1)

(m)

Sec. 14-1-14  Subdivision Regulations

Street Signs. The subdivider shall install at the intersections of all streets
proposed to be dedicated a street sign of a design specified by the Village Board.
Material Standards. All improvements constructed under this Chapter shall be of
the standards, where applicable, established by the State Highway Commission’s
"Standard Specifications for Roads and Bridges."  Where the Highway
Commission’s specifications do not apply, the standards shall be as approved by
the Village Engineer.

Improvements Complete Prior to Approval of Final Plat. Improvements within a
subdivision which have been completed prior to application for approval of the
final plat or execution of the contract for installation of the required improve-
ments shall be accepted as equivalent improvements in compliance with the
requirements only if the Village Engineer shall certify that he is satisfied that
the existing improvements conform to applicable standards.

SEC. 14-1-15 EASEMENTS.

(a)

(®)

(c)

Utility Easements. The Village Board, on the recommendation of appropriate
agencies of the Village, shall require utility easements for poles, wire, conduits,
storm and sanitary sewers, gas, water and head mains or other utility lines. It
is the interest of this Chapter to protect all established easements so as to
assure proper grade, assure maintenance of the established grade, prohibit
construction of permanent fences or retaining walls over underground installation
and prevent the planting of trees in the easement area.

Drainage Easements. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainage

way, channel or stream:

(1) There shall be provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way
conforming substantially to the lines of such watercourse and such further
width or construction, or both, as will be adequate for the purpose and as
may be necessary to comply with this Section; or

(2) The watercourse, drainage way, channel or stream may be relocated in such
a manner that the maintenance of adequate drainage will be assured and the
same provided with a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way
conforming to the lines of the relocated watercourse, and such further
width or construction, or both, as will be adequate for the purpose and may
be necessary to comply with this Section.

(3) Wherever possible, it is desirable that drainage be maintained by an open
channel with landscaped banks and adequate width for maximum potential
volume flow. In all cases, such water course shall be of a minimum width
established at the high-water mark or, in the absence of such specification,
not less than thirty (30) feet.

Easement Locations. Such easements shall be at least twelve (12) feet wide and

may run across lots or alongside of rear lot lines. Such easements should

preferably be located along rear lot lines. Evidence shall be furnished the

Village Board that easements and any easement provisions to be incorporated in

the plat or in deeds have been reviewed by the individual utility companies or

the organization responsible for furnishing the services involved.

2.0



Sec. 14-1-16  Subdivision Regulations

SEC. 14-1-16 VARIATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS.

(a) Where, in the judgment of the Village Board, it would be inappropriate to apply
literally the provisions of this Chapter because of the proposed subdivision being
located outside of the corporate limits or because exceptional or undue hardship
would result, the Village Board may waive or modify any requirements to the
extent deemed just and proper. Application for any such variance shall be made
in writing by the subdivider at the time when the preliminary plat is filed for
consideration, stating fully all facts relied upon by the petitioner, and shall be
supplemented with maps, plans or other additional data which may aid the Village
Board in the analysis of the proposed project. The plans for such development
shall include such covenants, restrictions or other legal provisions necessary to
guarantee the full achievement of the plan.

(b) The Village Board shall not grant variations or exceptions to the regulations of
this Chapter unless it shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to
it in each specific case that:

(1) The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public safety,
health or welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the
neighborhood in which the property is located;

(2) The conditions upon which the request for a variation is based are unique
to the property for which the variation is sought and are not applicable
generally to other property,

(3) Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical
conditions of the specific property involved, a particular hardship to the
owner would result, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the
strict letter of the regulations were carried out.

(¢) Such relief shall be granted without detriment to the public good, without
impairing the intent and purpose of this Chapter or the desirable general
development of the community in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan or
aoning Code, if applicable, of the Village. A majority vote of the entire
membership of the Village Board shall be required to grant any modification of
this Chapter, and the reasons shall be entered in the minutes of the Board.

(d) The Village Board may waive the placing of monuments, required under Section
236.15(b), (c) and (d), Wis. Stats., for a reasonable time on condition that the
subdivider execute a surety bond to insure the placing of such monuments within
the time required.

SEC. 14-1-17 PUBLIC PARKS AND SITES FOR OTHER PUBLIC AREAS.

(a) Suitable sites for public areas, such as but not limited to, parks, recreational
areas, parkways, public building areas or other public uses, but excluding schools,
shall be provided in one (1) or more of the following manners:

El Dedication of eight percent ‘58%) of the total area of the subdivision.

2) Transfer of ownership by deed to the Village of the areas of land equiv-
alent to the requirements of paragraph one (1) above.

(3) Where the dedication of land under paragraphs one (1) or two (2) above
would result in lands which would not be useful to the Village, the Village
Board may stipulate to the owner some other equitable means for making a
a dedication or, in lieu thereof, a cash payment of One Hundred Dollars
($100.00) per dwelling unit as each unit is sold or developed. Revenues
received in such a manner shall be deposited in a special account and shall
be used exclusively for public recreation in the Village.

21



Sec. 14-1-17  Subdivision Regulations

(b) When public parks and sites for other public areas, as shown on the Official

(c)

Map, lie within the area proposed for development and are greater in area than
required by Subsection (a)(1) above, the owner shall reserve for acquisition by
the Village, through agreement, purchase or condemnation, the remaining greater
public area for a period of one (1) year.

The Village Board shall determine which land shall be dedicated. Land dedicated
for drainageways is not a credit towards park dedication requirements.

SEC. 14-1-18 ENFORCEMENT, PENALTIES AND REMEDIES.

(2)

(b)

Violations. It shall be unlawful to build upon, divide, convey, record or monu-
ment any land in violation of this Chapter or the Wisconsin Statutes and no
person shall be issued a building gcrmit by the Village authorizing the building
on, or improvement of, any subdivision, land division or replat with the
jurisdiction of this Chapter not of record as of the effective date of this Code
until the provisions and requirements of this Chapter have been fully met. The

Village may institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin violations of

this Chapter or the applicable Wisconsin Statutes.

(1) Any person, firm or corporation who fails to comply with the provisions of
this Chapter shall, upon conviction thereof, forfeit no less than Fifty
Dollars ($50.00) nor more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) and the costs
of prosecution for each violation, and in default of payment of such
forfeiture costs shall be imprisoned in the County Jail until payment
thereof, but not exceeding thirty (30) days. Each day a violation exists or
continues shall constitute a separate offense.

(2) Recordation improperly made has penalties provided in Sec. 236.30, Wis.
Stats.

(3) Conveyance of lots in unrecorded plats has penalties provided for in Sec.
236.31, Wis. Stats.

(4) Monuments disturbed or not placed have penalties as provided for in Sec.
236.32, Wis. Stats.

(5) Assessor’s plat made under Section 70.27 of the Wisconsin Statutes may be
ordered by the Village at the expense of the subdivider when a subdivision
is created by successive divisions.

Appeals. Any person aggrieved by an objection to a plat or a failure to approve

a plat may appeal therefrom, as provided in Sections 236.13(5) and 62.23(7)(e)10

to 15 of the Wisconsin Statutes, within thirty (30) days of notification of the

rejection of the plat. Where failure to approve is based on an unsatisfied
objection, the agency making the objection shall be made a party to the action.

The court shall direct that the plat be approved if it finds that the action of

the approving or objecting agency 1s arbitrary, unreasonable or discriminatory.

22



b)  accessory buildings not exceeding an area of more than 30 percent of the required rear yard; and
c)  uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses when located on the same lot and not
involving the conduct of a business.

3. Requirements. In order to be considered a conforming lot or structure within an R-4 District, a lot or
structure must:

a)  have a minimum lot size of 8,000 square feet and a minimum lot width of 90 feet;

b)  have a front yard setback of 30 feet, a rear yard setback of 25 feet, and a side yard setback of 10
feet;

¢)  have a minimum living area of 1,800 square feet in the principal building;

d) notexceed a maximum principal building height of 35 feet; and

e)  have an accessory building side yard setback of 3 feet, rear yard setback of 3 feet, and not exceed a
maximum accessory building height of 15 feet.

4. Conditional Uses. The following uses shall be considered conditional uses within an R-4 District:

a)  churches, public and parochial schools;
b)  public parks and playgrounds; and
c)  day care centers.

SEC. 13-1-29 R-5 MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

1. Purpose. The R-5 District is intended to provide appropriate areas for multi-family land uses only in
urban areas served by public sewers. The District is also intended to provide rental housing in an area
protected from traffic hazards.

2. Permitted Uses. The following uses are permitted within an R-5 District:

a)  multi-family dwellings;

b)  uses customarily incidental to any of the above uses when located on the same lot and not
involving the conduct of a business.

c)  accessory buildings not exceeding an area of more than 30 percent of the required rear yard.

3. Requirements. In order to be considered a conforming lot or structure within an R-5 District, a lot or
structure must:

a)  have a minimum lot size of 2,500 square feet per family unit up to and including four (4) families,
and 2,250 square feet per family thereafter and a minimum lot width of 100 feet;

b)  have a front yard setback of 30 feet, a rear yard setback of 25 feet, and a side yard setback of 15
feet;

c) not exceed a maximum principal building height of 45 feet; and

d)  have an accessory building side yard setback of 3 feet, rear yard setback of 3 feet, and not exceed a

maximum accessory building height of 20 feet.

4. Conditional Uses. The following uses shall be considered conditional uses within an R-5 District:

a)  charitable institutions, rest homes or nursing homes, private non-profit clubs and lodges;
b)  mobile home parks in accordance with mobile home requirements;

c)  churches; and

d)  public parks and playgrounds;



WILLIAM J. ANDERSON
CHIEF OF POLICE

P.0.

MARCH 2023 POLICE REPORT

COLFAX POLICE DEPARTMENT

BOX 417, 613 MAIN ST.
COLFAX, W1 34730

(715) 962-3136 OFFICE
{715) 962-4357 FAX

Printed on April 3, 2023

CFS Date/Time

03/01/23 13:03:59
03/01/23 13:36:33
03/01/23 18:11:32
03/01/23 18:39:07
03/02/23 08:22:31
03/02/23 11:23:54
03/02/23 16:56:27
03/02/23 18:28:56
03/03/23 08:43:41
03/04/23 12:07:45
03/04/23 12:48:05
03/04/23 23:38:48
03/05/23 14:48:55
03/05/23 21:26:30
03/06/23 09:53:20
03/09/23 06:42:09
03/09/23 10:58:28
03/10/23 11:12:47
03/10/23 11:41:45
03/10/23 18:54:06
03/10/23 19:25:05
03/11/23 13:22:25
03/11/23 21:03:48
03/12/23 01:58:19
03/12/23 03:05:13
03/12/23 03:12:20
03/12/23 03:22:37
03/12/23 03:28:25
03/12/23 03:36:05
03/12/23 03:41:04
03/12/23 03:45:38
03/12/23 10:04:59
03/13/23 13:50:54
03/13/23 14:09:21
03/13/23 17:49:06
03/14/23 06:18:21
03/14/23 10:11:04
03/14/23 19:55:21
03/15/23 01:09:29
03/15/23 10:04:35

Description

CHECK WELFARE ON
CITY/COUNTY
SUSPICION

THEFT

911 HANG UP CALL -
STRAY/DEAD ANIMAL
TRAFFIC STOP
TRAFFIC STOP

911 HANG UP CALL -
ESCORT

PUBLIC RELATIONS
DISORDERLY
ESCORT
EMERGENCY

911 HANG UP CALL -
TRAFFIC STOP

911 HANG UP CALL -
STRAY/DEAD ANIMAL
THEFT

TRAFFIC STOP

owl

DOMESTIC DISPUTE
EMERGENCY
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
PARKING ORDINANCE
JUVENILE

911 HANG UP CALL -
JUVENILE

TRAFFIC STOP

911 HANG UP CALL -
WARRANT ATTEMPTS
WARRANT ATTEMPTS
TRAFFIC STOP
MOTORIST ASSIST -

Primary Units

501
501

501, 219
501
501
508
229, 508

214
214
226
214
CXMD8
501
221
901, 501
501
501
508
219, 508
220
CXMD7
508
508
508
508
508
508
508
508
228
501
214, 501
509, 213
221
501
506, 226
501
501

Page 1 of 2



CFS Date/Time

03/15/23 20:49:43
03/15/23 21:19:48
03/16/23 00:23:31
03/16/23 08:09:18
03/16/23 08:14:38
03/17/23 03:51:48
03/17/23 17:19:29
03/17/23 20:23:13
03/18/23 20:48:08
03/19/23 00:21:15
03/19/23 00:40:32
03/19/23 03:24:40
03/19/23 08:32:52
03/19/23 09:21:08
03/20/23 00:46:02
03/20/23 00:53:30
03/20/23 01:00:02
03/20/23 21:50:49
03/20/23 22:02:41
03/21/23 06:39:28
03/21/23 10:15:13
03/21/23 12:58:10
03/21/23 18:00:11
03/22/23 06:46:11
03/23/23 14:00:42
03/23/23 20:47:02
03/23/23 21:04:52
03/24/23 09:02:32
03/24/23 19:41:35
03/25/23 02:36.04
03/27/23 16:01:02
03/27/23 16:24:32
03/28/23 12:35:53
03/28/23 15:12:46
03/28/23 19:04:52
03/29/23 15:10:43
03/30/23 03:00:14
03/30/23 11:21:49
03/30/23 13:38:51
03/30/23 16:47:05
03/30/23 16:57:27
03/30/23 19:15:25
03/30/23 19:58:24
03/30/23 22:08:05
03/31/23 01:33:42

Total Records: 85

Description

EMERGENCY
TRAFFIC STOP
TRAFFIC STOP
STRAY/DEAD ANIMAL
DISORDERLY
ASSIST OTHER
TRAFFIC STOP
SUSPICION

TRAFFIC STOP
STRAY/DEAD ANIMAL
TRAFFIC STOP
DEATH

PARKING ORDINANCE
EMERGENCY
Duplicate Call
EMERGENCY
TRAFFIC STOP

ow!

ALARM

SUSPICION
WARRANT ATTEMPTS
PUBLIC RELATIONS
EMERGENCY
FRAUD/ FORGERY/
TRAFFIC STOP
DOMESTIC DISPUTE
ESCORT

owl

911 HANG UP CALL -
DEATH- NATURAL
911 HANG UP CALL -
911 HANG UP CALL -
WARRANT ATTEMPTS
SUSPICION

ASSIST OTHER
EMERGENCY
SUSPICION

911 HANG UP CALL -
911 HANG UP CALL -
TRAFFIC STOP
TRAFFIC STOP
TRAFFIC STOP
TRAFFIC STOP

owl

Primary Units

CXMDB8, 506
506

506

501

501, 2056
229

508

508

508

508
508, 213
MES5

214
CXMDS8, 219

E1

508

408, 508, 228, 108
205

212, 501
501

204, 508
CXMD8
210

506
CXMD7, 506, 213
501

506, 909
506
ME2

501

501

501

508

205
CXMD7
207, 501
501

506

506

506

506

506

506, 229

Page 2 of 2



Wesex

Inseections

2921 Ingalls Road
Menomonie, WI 54751

Mobile: 715-556-0066

FAX: 715-231-2447
www.weberinspections.com
inspector@weberinspections.com

Activity Report

Village of Colfax

Date Customer Service
(] 3/9/2023 Larrabee Electrical Hook-up
(] 3/9/2023 Larrabee Permit Issued

Any Permit with a check mark can be viewed on the state website

March

Pass/Fail Project

Passed

Electrical Upgrade



"Weber Inspections

2921 Ingalls Road, Menomonie, WI 54751  715-556-0066

Building Permit

Village of Colfax

Date 3/9/23
Issued to: Tom Larrabee / Integrity Electric of Knapp LLC.
Address: 301 Main St., Colfax Wis. 54730
Project: Electric Upgrade.
Permits Issued: Inspections Needed:

X Yes No

Cost Phase Rough Final

Construction Footing
HVAC Foundation
Electrical $90.00 Basement Drain Tiles
Plumbing Construction
Erosion Control Plumbing
Total S 90.00 Heat/Vent/AC

Electrical X

Paid Insulation
Occupancy




Elevator Meeting minutes

3/14/23

Attending: Mark Johnson, Gary Swartz, Lynn Niggemann, Nancy Baumgartner and Lisa Bragg-
Hurlburt

(no members of the public were in attendance)

e Bryant Christensen from River Valley Architects joined us for a tour of the building and
to talk about / answer questions regarding his company and our project.

e We asked Bryant our questions. His paraphrased answers are in red. | highlighted in
yellow the parts of the conversation that seem really significant, moving forward).

o Have you had a chance to review Cedar Corp’s drawings and cost estimate for
our project? What do you think of this plan? Thinks the overall plan Cedar Corps
gave us looks good. He wouldn’t change anything regarding the placement of the
elevator and addition other than the layout of the bathrooms. He also noted he
knows the Cedar Corps engineers and has a good working relationship with
them.

o If you could have a fresh slate, would you imagine something different for us?
Thinks our plan is fine (though questions putting too much effort into the
basement, because of structural problems down there and expense). On our
tour of the basement he noted that it would be very expensive to replace the
temporary supports down there with a large beam. We also looked at a crack in
the wall of the furnace room that seems to be larger than it was before. Water
problem seems largely corrected, but a 100 year flood could easily ruin an
expensive basement renovation.

o What is your preliminary goal or vision for this project? He said our timeline will
dictate his vision. We need to firmly commit to a year in which we want to apply
for the CDBG grant. (That will of course involve the cooperation and
commitment of the Village Board. It’s not something the Elevator Committee can
decide on our own because when it comes to CDBG grants, everything has to be
done on a timeline and according to correct Federal procedure).



What will you charge for updating our project cost estimate in a format that
gives us three options and suggests how we could do the work in stages? The
first stage has to be the elevator. There is no sense in working on any of the
other proposed improvements without the elevator. And since that will be by far
the most expensive part of the project, conceiving the project in phases might
not be the best approach.

Note: Lisa mentioned that Craig Johnson from West Central Wisconsin Regional
Planning Commission says that CDBG rules are changing. Now FULL DESIGNS
need to be completed prior to submitting the CDBG application. For a full design
that includes the basement work we originally wanted, we’re talking over
$100,000, and that’s money that needs to be spent before we even apply for
(and know whether we’re going to get) the CDBG grant.

How long do you expect it will take to develop this plan? It will take 4-5 months
to develop the full design, so he recommends contacting his company the year
BEFORE we want to apply for the grant, to ascertain they are available to work
that year and to complete the design work.

Will drawings be provided? Yes, not just drawings but also 3-D renderings that
completely envisage what a walk-through would be like.

Who would our contacts be for the project? Bryant is our contact. He left us
copies of his business card.

If we secure funding for the project, would your company be able to work with
us through the full design process? What services do you offer? Yes, they do
everything regarding architecture and interior design, and they are connected
with the civil engineers / other types of engineers needed to get this done

Do you have builders you work with? Yes, they work with all the major local
builders. If we hire them to design this project, the major large local companies
will bid to do the work.

Do you have project engineers and grant writers? Yes they have project
engineers, but no (unlike Cedar Corps) they don’t do grant-writing. They would
need to work closely with whoever we have write the grant to make sure all

2



aspects of the process support grant expectations. (Our grant writer would be
Craig Johnson from WCWRPC).

Do you have experience working on historic buildings? Yes they do. Before we
get too far into the design process we will need to make sure our proposed
changes are allowed for this historic building.

Do you have advice on things we should consider before undertaking this
project? We need to consider the longevity of use... how long will the current
occupants of the building be here? We also need to consider the soundness of
structure and the expense of the project.

Can you think of possible areas where we could save money? Just make very
basic structural repairs to the basement and give up the idea of having it for
public use. Use it for storage so that storage areas on the accessible floors of the
building could be freed up for other use.

Will someone come out at a future date to take measurements and
photographs? yes

Would you be able to come back to attend a future Village Board meeting? Yes

e We thanked Bryant for coming and then conducted the rest of our meeting

e Current Elevator Project savings & pledges total $122,843.86

e Lynn McEntyre from Cedar Corps will be speaking to us next weekend, to tour the
building and answer questions similar to what Bryant did today.

e Bob Sworski from CBS Squared has been contacted too but we don’t have a definite
time set up yet.

e Gary suggested we see if Craig Johnson from WCWRPC can talk to us

e Mark has reserved both buildings at Fairgrounds for August 7-12. Sale would be 8/10-12

Adjourn



Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer
April 6th, 2023

The Final Election for 2023 is complete:

JUDICIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Justice of the Supreme Court School Board Member
Janet C Protasiewicz 180 Kenneth A. Bjork 164
Daniel KeIIy 128 Jodi Kiekhafer 216
Scattering 1 Jaclyn Ackerlund 184
Denise Solberg 129
Scattering 7
= MUNICPAL REFERENDUM
Vl!lage President State
Jef,f Prlnce - 214 Q1: Conditions of release
Write-in: Carey Davis 73 before conviction
Scattering 2 Yes 192
No 106
Village Trustee (Vote for Q2: Cash bail before
3) conviction
Yes 199
Jeff Prince 197 No 104
Margaret Burcham 186 Q3: Shall able-bodied,
Write-in: Jen Rud 29 childless adults be required to
Scattering 30 Iook_for work in order to
receive taxpayer-funded
welfare benefits.
Yes 249
Total Voters 315 No 59
Registered Voters 629
Votes Cast 315
Percentage 50%

THANK YOU POLL WORKERS FOR YOUR HARD WORK!

Organizational meeting: Tuesday April 18" 2023 at 6 pm.



